Suicide Mortality in the Americas

1

Д

ſ

N

0

1

Ī

R

IJ

REGIONAL REPORT 2010–2014

0

Å



Suicide Mortality in the Americas

REGIONAL REPORT 2010–2014

Washington, D.C., 2021



Suicide Mortality in the Americas. Regional Report 2010-2014

© Pan American Health Organization, 2021

ISBN: 978-92-75-12329-4 (Print) ISBN: 978-92-75-12330-0 (PDF)

Some rights reserved. This work is available under the Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-ShareAlike 3.0 IGO license (CC BY-NC-SA 3.0 IGO; <u>https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-sa/3.0/igo</u>).



Under the terms of this license, this work may be copied, redistributed, and adapted for non-commercial purposes, provided the new work is issued using the same or equivalent Creative Commons license and it is appropriately cited, as indicated below. In any use of this work, there should be no suggestion that the Pan American Health Organization (PAHO) endorses any specific organization, product, or service. Use of the PAHO logo is not permitted.

Adaptations: If this work is adapted, the following disclaimer should be added along with the suggested citation: "This is an adaptation of an original work by the Pan American Health Organization (PAHO). Views and opinions expressed in the adaptation are the sole responsibility of the author(s) of the adaptation and are not endorsed by PAHO."

Translation: If this work is translated, the following disclaimer should be added along with the suggested citation: "This translation was not created by the Pan American Health Organization (PAHO). PAHO is not responsible for the content or accuracy of this translation."

Suggested citation. *Suicide Mortality in the Americas. Regional Report 2010–2014.* Washington, DC: Pan American Health Organization; 2021. License: CC BY-NC-SA 3.0 IGO.

Cataloguing-in-Publication (CIP) data. CIP data are available at http://iris.paho.org.

Sales, **rights**, **and licensing**. To purchase PAHO publications, write to <u>sales@paho.org</u>. To submit requests for commercial use and queries on rights and licensing, visit <u>http://www.paho.org/permissions</u>.

Third-party materials. If material that is attributed to a third party, such as tables, figures, or images, is reused from this work, it is the user's responsibility to determine whether permission is needed for that reuse and to obtain permission from the copyright holder. The risk of claims resulting from infringement of any third-party-owned material or component from this work rests solely with the user.

General disclaimers. The designations employed and the presentation of the material in this publication do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of PAHO concerning the legal status of any country, territory, city, or area or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers or boundaries. Dotted and dashed lines on maps represent approximate border lines for which there may not yet be full agreement.

The mention of specific companies or of certain manufacturers' products does not imply that they are endorsed or recommended by PAHO in preference to others of a similar nature that are not mentioned. Errors and omissions excepted, the names of proprietary products are distinguished by initial capital letters.

All reasonable precautions have been taken by PAHO to verify the information contained in this publication. However, the published material is being distributed without warranty of any kind, either expressed or implied. The responsibility for the interpretation and use of the material lies with the reader. In no event shall PAHO be liable for damages arising from its use.

NMH/MH/2021

Contents

Acknowledgments	vi
Introduction	1
Methodology	4
Results	7
Overview of suicide in the Region of the Americas Changes in suicide rates between 2000 and 2014 Relative importance of suicide as a principal cause of death	7
Gender and suicide	8
Age and suicide	8
Suicide methods	0
Countries and territories	2
Validity and limitations of the data1	2
Global comparisons	4
Final considerations 1	5
Relevant epidemiological data	5
Key points	5
References 1	7

Tables

Table 1.	Countries and territories with years not reporting mortality data	19
Table 2.	Suicide rates per 100,000 population in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014	20
Table 3.	Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2000–2014	20
Table 4.	Ranking and percentage contribution (in parentheses) of suicide among other causes of death, by sex, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010-2014	
Table 5.	Ranking of suicide among other causes of death, by sex, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2000–2014	
Table 6.	Ranking and percentage contribution (in parentheses) of suicide among other causes of death, by age, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014	
Table 7.	Percentage contribution of suicide among external causes of death, by sex and age, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014.	
Table 8.	Female-males suicide ratio, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014	
Table 9.	Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2010–2014	24

Table 10.	Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, males, 2010–2014.	24
Table 11.	Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, females, 2010–2014.	25
Table 12.	Method of suicide as percentage of total, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2000–2014	25
Table 13.	Method of suicide as percentage of total, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, males, 2000–2014	26
Table 14.	Method of suicide as percentage of total, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, females, 2000-2014	26
Table 15.	Fire as a percentage of total methods of suicide, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, by sex, 2000–2014.	27
Table 16.	Drowning, cutting, jumping, and blunt force, automobile, or other specified, as percentage of total methods of suicide, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, by sex, 2010-2014	27
Table 17.	Age-standardized suicide rates per 100,000 population, by five-year groups 2000–2014, both sexes, in the 12 countries of the Americas with highest suicide rate in 2010–2014	
Table 18.	Percentage of external causes of death due to suicide in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014.	

Figures

Figure 2. Years of life lost (YLL), by age group, in the Region of the Americas, females, 2014	30
Figure 3. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2010–2014	31
Figure 4. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, males, 2010–2014.	32
Figure 5. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, females, 2010–2014	33
Figure 6. Method of suicide in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2010–2014.	34
Figure 7. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2010–2014	35
Figure 8. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, males, 2010–2014.	36
Figure 9. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, females, 2010–2014	37
Figure 10. Suicide rates per 100,000 population in the Region of the Americas by countries, both sexes, 2010–2014.	38
Figure 11. Suicide rates per 100,000 population in the Region of the Americas by countries, males, 2010–2014	39
Figure 12. Suicide rates per 100,000 population in the Region of the Americas by countries, females, 2010–2014	40

Appendix tables

Table A1.	Age-unadjusted and age-adjusted suicide rates per 100,000 population, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014.	41
Table A2.	Female-males suicide ratio, by age group, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014	43
Table A3.	Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, both sexes, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014.	
Table A4.	Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, males, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014.	
Table A5.	Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, females, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014.	
Table A6.	Method of suicide as percentage of total, both sexes, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014.	
Table A7.	Method of suicide as percentage of total, males, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014	
Table A8.	Method of suicide as percentage of total, females, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014	
Table A9.	Non-standardized suicide rates per 100,000 population, by five-year groups, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2000–2014.	57
Table A10.	Age-standardized suicide rates per 100,000 population, by five-year groups, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2000–2014	59
Table A11.	Percentage contribution of suicide among external causes of death, by sex, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014	61
Table A12.	Annual average number of suicides in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014	63
Table A13.	Female-males ratio of suicide methods used, age-unadjusted, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014	63
Table A14.	Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2010–2014	64
Table A15.	Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, males, 2010–2014	
Table A16.	Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, females, 2010–2014	

Acknowledgments

This publication would not have been possible without the sustained commitment of Dr. Robert Kohn, Director of the PAHO/WHO Collaborating Center at Brown University, and Melanie Y. Brown, who prepared the report. The support provided by Dr. Jorge Rodriquez for undertaking the information processing and analysis is very much appreciated. Sincere thanks also go to Dr. Maristela Monteiro, Dr. Susana Morales Silva, and the late Dr. Alberto Minoletti for the revision support that they provided; and to Dr. Renato Oliveira e Souza and Dr. Claudina Ellington Cayetano, who assisted in revising and improving the document through the various drafts. Special thanks go to Martha Koev, who provided timely administrative support throughout the report preparation process.

As a result of the work and dedication of these and several other persons not mentioned here, this publication will help inform the discourse about suicide in the Region of the Americas.

Introduction

n 2010, the Pan American Health Organization (PAHO) published the first regional report on suicide mortality in the Americas (1), which evaluated the period 2000–2004; followed by the second report, published in 2014 (2), which analyzed the period 2005–2009. This report is the third in the series, evaluating the period 2010–2014.

This report provides a general description of suicide mortality in the Region of the Americas and by subregions and countries. It analyzes the distribution of suicide according to age, sex, and methods used, along with the changes in suicide from 2000 to 2014. This report is limited to the study of mortality as, in most countries, no record of self-harm exists, due to lack of appropriate surveillance systems.

Although suicide prevention has advanced, in recent decades, suicide in the Americas continues to be an important contributor to the global burden of disease. As an example, in the Region, the years of life lost (YLL) to suicide compared with all causes of death for individuals 10–24 years of age increased from 6.9% in 1990 to 8.8% in 2014 (3). Furthermore, suicide in the Americas principally impacts the young and working-age population; 60% of suicides are among persons between ages 15 and 50, corresponding to 75% of YLL (4). Figures 1 and 2 show YLL by age and its greater impact on the younger population.

Epidemiological data serve as a foundation to support suicide prevention initiatives, demonstrating that there is a need to increase, systematize, and guarantee the quality of national data on suicide deaths, especially in low- and middle-income countries (5, 6).

Restricting access to potentially lethal means that can be used for suicide is a key component of suicide prevention programs. The study of suicide methods, such as the most-utilized method according to sex, age, and other demographic characteristics, contributes to creating appropriate prevention policies. These include, for example, limiting access to pesticides and firearms, placing safety barriers in subways and on bridges, and controlling the sale of medications. The consumption of alcohol is an important risk factor for suicide; it can facilitate suicidal intent and cause illness that leads to suicide. Yet, death certificates only include alcohol when the blood levels are compatible with a direct cause by poisoning, not as an associated factor, causing important underreporting. Alcohol is commonly used together with other suicide methods such as firearms, suffocation, and drowning.

In May 2013, the 66th World Health Assembly adopted the first mental health action plan in the history of the World Health Organization (WHO). This plan proposed to reduce suicide rates by

10% by the year 2020 and emphasized that "suicide rates tend to be underreported owing to weak surveillance systems, a misattribution of suicide to accidental deaths, as well as its criminalization in some countries. Nevertheless, most countries are showing either a stable or an increasing trend in the rate of suicide, while several others are showing long-term decreasing trends" (7).

Toward the end of 2014, WHO launched the report *Preventing Suicide*: A *Global Imperative* (5), in which the WHO Director-General, Dr. Margaret Chan, stated, "Every suicide is a tragedy. It is estimated that over 800,000 people die by suicide and that there are many suicide attempts for each death. The impact on families, friends, and communities is devastating . . . Unfortunately, suicide all too often fails to be prioritized as a major public health problem."

WHO reports a global annual age-adjusted suicide rate of 11.4 per 100,000 population. However, the global report highlights a significant amount of underreporting. Suicide data collection is a complex process involving various institutions and services, including the police. In countries with sub-par mortality records, suicides are not counted. Suicide is often additionally misclassified under death due to other causes (*5*).

For every suicide death, there are many more non-lethal acts of self-harm. Studies on the Americas have found a lifelong suicide attempt prevalence of between 2% and 5% (8). It is important to note that a history of previous suicide attempts is the most important risk factor for suicide in the general population. For this reason, good suicide prevention programs require a record of those with previous suicidal behavior; this in turn requires a surveillance system with rapid availability of collected data. It has been demonstrated that, besides mental illness, there are other risk factors associated with suicide; therefore, preventive measures should not solely focus on the health sector; instead, the response should be multisectoral. For example, the harmful consumption of alcoholic beverages can be reduced with regulatory measures aimed at limiting access, increasing prices, prohibiting advertisement, and reducing the days, locations, hours, and density of points of sale (9). Effective measures to prevent suicide include reducing access to potentially lethal means, responsible information from the mass media, protection of those at risk of suicide, and the early identification and treatment of mental disorders (7).

Many people who self-harm belong to vulnerable or marginalized social groups. PAHO has placed special attention on exchanging experiences with indigenous communities about suicide prevention and the understanding these communities have about mental health, general well-being, and suicide (10).

The WHO action plan for addressing the mental health gap has provided a collection of technical guides, based on scientific evidence, to augment and improve the availability of mental health services, especially in resource-limited settings. These programs focus on a set of prioritized conditions, suicidal behavior among them, and direct training toward non-specialized health workers, especially

at the primary care level. In addition, WHO has modules for the management of other problems that are linked to self-harm, such as depression and alcohol use disorders (7, 11).

A national suicide prevention strategy with an associated action plan is necessary for tackling the problem of suicidal behavior. Without this, it is likely that efforts will not be appropriately organized, will have limited impact, or will not be sustainable over time. Nevertheless, there are positive examples and lessons learned from countries around the world that show a variety of adopted plans and selected indicators. In all cases, a focus toward risk evaluation and effective surveillance systems is essential (9).

The current PAHO Strategic Plan 2020–2025 includes suicide as one of the indicators to evaluate in the Region of the Americas (12). Suicide mortality rate is also included as an indicator under the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals, Target 3.4, which aims, by 2030, to reduce by one-third premature mortality from noncommunicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well-being (13).

In the Americas, national governments have recognized the magnitude of the problem and, in the framework of the Plan of Action on Mental Health (14) adopted by the PAHO 53rd Directing Council, gave PAHO/WHO the mandate to strengthen technical cooperation in this area. This report is part of the efforts to disseminate information that reflects the reality of suicidal behavior and serves as a foundation for action.

Methodology

he suicide mortality information used in this report originates from the PAHO/WHO regional mortality database, updated annually from national databases. Due to quality criteria, deaths due to unknown causes were proportionally redistributed to other categories by sex and age group. In the same way, deaths of ill-defined causes (International Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems, 10th edition [ICD-10] codes R95–R99) and lethal events of undetermined intent (ICD-10 codes Y10–Y34) were proportionally redistributed and corrected according to the level of underregistration.

Suicide mortality was based on reported intentional self-harm deaths (ICD-10 codes X60.0–X84.9, Y87.0). Suicide mortality rates per 100,000 population were calculated using each country's annual population estimate from the United Nations. To obtain stable suicide rates, the number of suicides was averaged by the estimated population for each five-year period, respectively. In some countries, suicide data were not available for every year, so rates were calculated based on the years with available data; this permitted the inclusion of almost every country and territory in the Region. Table 1 provides a list of the countries and territories that had years with no available mortality data.

This report corresponds to the five-year period between 2010 and 2014. In some cases, comparisons are drawn with the previous five-year periods 2000–2004 and 2005–2009. Suicide rates are presented both standardized and non-standardized by age. Age-adjusted rates were calculated based on the world standard population using five-year age intervals. This age-adjustment process corrects for differences in population structure by age, facilitating comparisons between subregions and countries and over time (15).

Suicide mortality data were analyzed by sex and age. The female-males suicide ratio was estimated with the number of suicide deaths in males per 100,000 population divided by the number of suicide deaths in females per 100,000 population. If sex had no effect on suicide, the proportion would equal 1.0. If the ratio is greater than 1.0, there were more deaths from suicide in males, while a ratio of less than 1.0 indicates a greater number of suicide deaths in females. In cases where the number of suicide deaths in either sex was zero, 0.1 was added to the number of suicides for both groups for the corresponding calculation.

The method of suicide was compared based on the percentage of each method in relation to the total number of suicides. The method groups were derived using the following ICD-10 categories:

- **1.** Poisoning by exposure to and use of drugs, medications, alcohol, and other biologic substances (X60–X65);
- 2. Poisoning by exposure to pesticides and other chemical substances (X66–X69);
- 3. Hanging, strangling, and asphyxiation (X70);
- 4. Drowning and submersion (X71);
- 5. Firearm discharge (X72–X74);
- 6. Intentional self-harm by explosive material, smoke, fire, steam, hot vapor, and hot objects (X75–X77);
- 7. Intentional self-harm by sharp object (X78);
- Intentional self-harm by blunt object, motor vehicle crash, and other specified means (X79, X82–X83);
- 9. Intentional self-harm by jumping or lying in front of a moving vehicle (X80–X81);
- **10.** Intentional self-harm by unspecified means (X84).

Poisoning as a suicide method, unlike in prior reports, was separated into two categories: by pesticides and other chemical products, and by alcohol or drug intoxication. This division is important, given that these two categories of poisoning differ significantly globally in their characteristics, prevalence, and intervention modalities for prevention. Analysis of suicide method was not examined by age-standardization.

The ranking of suicide among all causes of death was determined using the Global Burden of Diseases (GBD) level-three disease categorization. The GBD includes 151 categories of disease (15).

This report uses the same division of subregions of the Americas as the previous report (2):

- North America: Canada, United States of America, Puerto Rico, and the United States Virgin Islands;
- Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico: Costa Rica, Cuba, Dominican Republic, El Salvador, Guatemala, Mexico, Nicaragua, and Panama;
- South America: Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Colombia, Ecuador, Paraguay, Peru, Uruguay, and Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of);
- Non-Hispanic Caribbean: Anguilla, Antigua and Barbuda, Aruba, Bahamas, Barbados, Belize, Bermuda, British Virgin Islands, Cayman Islands, Curaçao, Dominica, French Guiana, Guadeloupe, Grenada, Guyana, Jamaica, Montserrat, Saint Kitts and Nevis, Saint Lucia, Saint Vincent and the Grenadines, Suriname, Trinidad and Tobago, and Turks and Caicos Islands.

All countries in Latin America and the Caribbean that provided mortality data for the 2010–2014 period are included, with the exception of those that appear under North America. The data on suicide mortality in the Americas and by subregion are presented in the Results section. The Appendix includes data by country.

Due to some changes in the methodology of this report, slight differences may exist in the reported rate of suicide from the two previous reports. This is essentially due to the distribution of deaths of ill-defined and unknown causes and lethal events of undetermined intent, along with the estimated underregistration of deaths.

Results

OVERVIEW OF SUICIDE IN THE REGION OF THE AMERICAS

ith an annual average of 81,746 suicide deaths in the period 2010–2014 and an ageadjusted suicide rate of 9.3 per 100,000 population (age-unadjusted rate of 9.6), suicide continues to be a public health problem of great relevance in the Region (Table 2).

In the period 2010–2014, 55.8% of suicide deaths in the Region occurred in North America. The age-adjusted suicide rate was also highest in North America (12.8 per 100,000 population), which along with the non-Hispanic Caribbean (9.8) was higher than the regional rate, while the other two subregions had rates lower than the regional rate (6.7 in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico; 6.9 in South America). The age-adjusted suicide rate for Latin America and the Caribbean was 6.9 per 100,000 population.

CHANGES IN SUICIDE RATES BETWEEN 2000 AND 2014

Using age-adjusted rates, it appears the rate of suicide in the Americas stayed relatively stable during the 15 years between 2000 and 2014. In Latin America and the Caribbean, a small decrease in the suicide rate was seen (from 7.2 in 2000–2004 to 6.9 in 2010–2014), whereas there was an increase during that time period in North America (from 11.3 in 2000–2004 to 12.8 in 2010–2014) (Table 3).

Analysis of sex-specific data shows no significant changes in suicide rates at the regional level. Both sexes showed increased suicide rates in North America, while in Latin America and the Caribbean there was a small decrease among males but no change among females.

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SUICIDE AS A PRINCIPAL CAUSE OF DEATH

One method of evaluating the importance of suicide as a public health problem consists of determining its relative contribution to total deaths. Suicide was the 21st leading cause of death in the Americas (1.4% of total deaths), the 18th among males, and the 35th among females in the period 2010–2014. The largest contribution was in North America, where suicide ranked 17th, while in Latin America and the Caribbean it ranked 25th. In the other subregions, suicide ranked between 22nd and 26th (Table 4). Compared with previous five-year periods, an uptrend was seen in the ranking of suicide among other causes of death, from 22nd in 2000–2004 to 20th in 2010–2014 (Table 5).

Among people aged 10–44 years, suicide ranked third as cause of death in the Americas in the period 2010–2014, while among those aged 45–59, suicide ranked 12th. Suicide ranks higher as a cause of death in North America compared with Latin America and the Caribbean in all age groups and both sexes (Table 6).

Suicide comprised 13.3% of the total deaths by external causes in the Americas in 2010–2014. This proportion varied by sex, age, and subregion; in males the proportion was 13.5% while in females it was 12.7%. The percentage was markedly higher in North America (22.1%) than in Latin America and the Caribbean (8.8%). By age, the highest percentages corresponded to the age groups 45–59 (18.9%) and 60–69 (17.4%) (Table 7).

GENDER AND SUICIDE

In the Americas, similarly to the rest of the world, suicide rates continue to be higher among males than females. Age-adjusted suicide rates in the Region in 2010–2014 were 14.9 per 100,000 population in males and 4.0 per 100,000 in females. In North America, the rate was 20.1 for males and 5.8 for females, while in Latin America and the Caribbean it was 11.3 and 2.8 per 100,000 for males and females, respectively (Table 2). The global rate was 15.0 among males, similar to the regional rate, and 8.0 among females, twice the regional rate.

About 79% of the total suicide deaths in the Americas are among males. On average, the ageadjusted female-males ratio was 3.7 in the Region, 3.5 in North America, and 4.0 in Latin America and the Caribbean. Among the subregions, the female-males ratio was highest in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico at 4.4. The ratio was 3.9 in South America and 3.6 in the non-Hispanic Caribbean.

At the regional level, in all age groups, males had higher rates of suicide. The highest female-males ratio was in people aged 70 and older (7.8), whereas the lowest female-males ratio was in the 10–19 years age group (2.1) (Table 8).

AGE AND SUICIDE

In the Region of the Americas, the highest rate of suicide per 100,000 population was among people aged 45–59 (13.6), followed by those aged 70 and older (13.5), then those aged 60–69 (12.2) (Table 9). In North America, the highest rate of suicide was among those aged 45–59, at 20.3, compared with 8.1 for the same age group in Latin America and the Caribbean. The group with the highest rate of suicide in Latin America and the Caribbean was those aged 70 and older (10.4), as it also was in the subregions of Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico and South America. However, in

the non-Hispanic Caribbean, the highest rate was in the 25–44 years age group (13.1). At the global level, suicide rates are lowest among those under 15 years and highest among those aged 70 and older, for both males and females.

Figure 3 shows suicide rates for each of the subregions by five-year age groups. In North America, there is a steady increase in suicide rates, peaking at age 50–54, with a smaller increase starting at age 75. For Latin America and the Caribbean, the rate of suicide increases up to age 20–24 and subsequently plateaus until it begins to rise again at age 75–79; a similar pattern is seen for South America. The same pattern is seen for Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico, except the rise from the plateau begins at age 60–64. In the non-Hispanic Caribbean, the suicide rate increases up to age 45–49 and then begins to fall.

Among males in the Americas, the highest rate of suicide per 100,000 population was in the 70 years and older age group (27.2), followed by age groups 45–59 (21.2) and 60–69 (20.2) (Table 10). The highest rate of suicide was among those aged 70 and older in both North America (32.2) and Latin America and the Caribbean (21.0). In the other subregions, the highest rate of suicide for males was among those aged 70 and older, with the exception of the non-Hispanic Caribbean, where the highest rate was in the 25–44 years age group.

Figure 4 shows the suicide rates for each of the subregions by five-year age groups for males. In North America, there is a steady increase in the suicide rate up to age 50–54, followed by a drop until age 60–64, and a subsequent rise to its highest point in the oldest age group. For Latin America and the Caribbean, as well as Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico and South America, the suicide rate increases up to age 20–24 and subsequently plateaus until it begins to rise again at age 60–64. In the non-Hispanic Caribbean, the suicide rate increases up to age 80–84.

Among females in the Americas, the highest rate of suicide per 100,000 population was in the 45–59 age group (6.4), followed by age groups 60–69 (4.9) and 25–44 (4.4) (Table 11). In North America the highest rate of suicide was among those aged 45–59 (10.3). The highest rate of suicide for females in Latin America and the Caribbean was among those aged 20–24 (3.6), as it also was in the two subregions of Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico (3.6) and the non-Hispanic Caribbean (6.6). In South America, the highest rate among females was shared by the two age groups of 20-24 (3.5) and 45-59 (3.5).

Figure 5 shows suicide rates for each of the subregions by five-year age groups for females. In North America there is a steady increase in the suicide rate up to age 50–54 and then a steady decline. For Latin America and the Caribbean, as well as Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico and South America, the suicide rate increases up to age 15–19 and then decreases until age 25–29, where it subsequently plateaus. In the non-Hispanic Caribbean, the suicide rate increases up to age 15–19 and then continues to fall.

SUICIDE METHODS

As shown in Figure 6, suffocation (43.6%), firearms (31.0%), poisoning with drugs and alcohol (9.1%), and poisoning with pesticides and chemicals (7.5%) were the four methods most used for suicide in the Region of the Americas in the five-year period 2010–2014. Together, these represented 91% of all suicides. However, there are variations by subregion, as shown in Table 12.

North America had the highest proportion of suicide deaths from firearms (46.9%), a much higher proportion than in the other subregions. In Latin America and the Caribbean, the most-used method was suffocation (64.7%), generally by hanging. By subregion, in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico (70.2%) and South America (63.4%), the highest proportion of suicide deaths was by suffocation. In the non-Hispanic Caribbean, the most common method was poisoning with pesticides and chemicals (56.0%).

Comparing the three successive five-year periods, a small decrease in usage of firearms and an increase in suffocation can be seen in the Americas. Most notably, suffocation as a method of suicide increased in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico; the non-Hispanic Caribbean; and South America. Suffocation was consistently the most commonly used suicide method in Latin America and the Caribbean in the three 5-year periods between 2000 and 2014. Mortality due to firearms primarily decreased in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico; the non-Hispanic Caribbean; and South America and the Caribbean in Central America.

It is worth highlighting the change over time in the proportion of suicides due to poisoning. A reduction in suicides by pesticides and chemicals was seen in all subregions, with the exception of the non-Hispanic Caribbean, which may be due to the implementation of suicide prevention programs in some countries with high rates of suicide mortality related to the free availability of pesticides. An increase in poisonings related to the consumption of drugs and alcohol was found in some subregions but not others.

The chosen method of suicide varied between males and females. In males, the most common suicide method in the Region was suffocation (45.5%); equally in Latin America and the Caribbean (67.8%) and the subregions of Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico (73.4%) and South America (66.4%). However, firearms were the most-used method in North America (52.4%), whereas poisoning with pesticides or chemicals was the most frequent method used by males in the non-Hispanic Caribbean (53.4%) (Table 13).

For males, the percentage of suicides due to suffocation increased in all subregions between 2000 and 2014. In contrast, suicides by firearms decreased in all subregions. Poisoning by drugs and alcohol increased in the Region as a whole, with increases seen in North America and South America, while a decrease was noted in the non-Hispanic Caribbean. Poisoning by pesticides and chemicals decreased in all subregions except for the non-Hispanic Caribbean.

In females, suffocation was also the most commonly used suicide method in the Region (37.2%), followed by poisoning with drugs or alcohol (22.3%), firearms (18.3%), and poisoning with pesticides or chemicals (10.4%). In the subregional analysis, the use of drugs or alcohol was the principal method in North America (32.9%), while in the non-Hispanic Caribbean, poisoning with pesticides or chemicals (65.1%) was most used. Suffocation was the most common method in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico (56.8%) and in South America (52.2%) (Table 14).

For females, the percentage of suicides due to suffocation increased in all subregions between 2000 and 2014. As in males, suicides by firearms decreased in all subregions. Poisoning by drugs and alcohol remained relatively stable over time in the in the Region, with a small increase in South America and a decrease in the non-Hispanic Caribbean. As in males, poisoning by pesticides and chemicals decreased in all subregions except for the non-Hispanic Caribbean.

Among the major gender differences in suicide methods in the Region of the Americas are that the proportion of suicides by firearms was approximately twice as high in males than females, whereas the percentage of suicides using drugs or alcohol was four times higher among females. The proportion of suicides by poisoning with pesticides or chemicals was higher among females, while the proportion by suffocation was higher among males.

Suicide by fire was an important cause of death in the five-year period 2000–2004, particularly among females in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico (11.6%) and the non-Hispanic Caribbean (7.0%). In 2010–2014, this method of suicide reduced substantially to 4.6% and 1.4% of female suicides in those same two subregions, respectively (Table 15). Less common forms of suicide – such as drowning, cutting, and by blunt force or automobile and other causes – showed little change over time but showed differences by sex (Table 16).

Suicide methods also varied according to age and subregion. In general, in the Americas, people under 60 years of age had a higher probability of suicide from suffocation, while those aged 60 and above more commonly used firearms (Figure 7). In North America, firearms were the most frequently used method among the different age groups, with the exception of adolescents and children, who used suffocation most frequently. In Latin America and the Caribbean, suffocation was the principal method of suicide in every age group; likewise, in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico and in South America. In the non-Hispanic Caribbean, poisoning with pesticides and chemicals was the most-used method in every age group except for children.

Among males in the Americas, the probability of suicide by firearms increased with age, and by age 60 the majority of suicides were no longer by suffocation but by firearms (Figure 8). In North America, firearms are the most frequently used method among the different age groups over the age of 19. In Latin America and the Caribbean, suffocation was the principal method of suicide in every age group; likewise, in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico and in South America. In the non-Hispanic Caribbean, poisoning with pesticides and chemicals was the most-used method

among those aged 20-59 and those over 70; whereas suffocation was the most common method among those under age 20 and in the 60-69 age group (Figure 8).

The pattern of suicide method by age is different for females and males. Among females in the Americas, suffocation was the most common method, except among those aged 45–69, where poisoning by drugs and alcohol was more common (Figure 9). Although firearms were the third most frequently used method of suicide, the proportion increased with age. In North America, suffocation was the most frequently used method of suicide up to age 24, whereas from that age onwards, poisoning by drugs and alcohol becomes the most frequent method. The use of firearms as a method of suicide consistently increased with age, whereby the proportion by age 70 was nearly the same as that for poisoning with drugs and alcohol. In Latin America and the Caribbean, suffocation is the most frequent method of suicide in every age group in all subregions except the non-Hispanic Caribbean, where poisoning with pesticides and chemicals was the most frequently used method across all age groups. In the Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico subregion in particular, fire as a method of suicide increased with age and by age 70 is the second most common method used, reaching 15.6% (Figure 9).

COUNTRIES AND TERRITORIES

The Appendix provides detailed information on suicide for individual countries and territories in the Region of the Americas. Table 17 shows age-adjusted suicide rates among countries and territories with the highest rates of mortality over the past three 5-year periods in alphabetical order. These 12 countries and territories accounted for 68% of all suicides in the Americas. Guyana and Suriname had the highest rates of suicide in the Region. Suicide rates over time had varied patterns in different countries. For example, the suicide rate in Guyana and the United States of America increased over time, while Argentina, French Guiana, and Nicaragua had steadily decreasing rates over time. Figures 10–12 show the marked variability in suicide rates among countries and territories of the Americas. Suicide rates in all countries and territories were markedly lower among females than males; accordingly, the scale per 100,000 population for females is adjusted in Figure 12.

VALIDITY AND LIMITATIONS OF THE DATA

The findings in this report should be interpreted bearing in mind certain limitations, some of which also applied in the publications on the two previous five-year periods (1, 2, 16).

• In some countries of the Region, mortality records are incomplete or delayed in the WHO database, which is to say that not every year evaluated is covered. Table 1 details the years for which countries did not report mortality data.

- Some countries recognize limitations and deficiencies in the primary record or classification of deaths.
- Suicides represent an unknown portion of unregistered deaths, and it is probable those countries with a high percentage of unregistered deaths have a larger number of unincluded suicide deaths.
- Deaths from external causes of undetermined intention are the lethal events in which legal or medical authorities cannot attribute the cause of death to homicide, suicide, or accident (Table 18). The determination of intention in order to classify a death as suicide is affected by legal regulations, which can vary between countries. Sociocultural elements and stigma also influence whether some deaths are or are not classified as suicide.
- In this report, some methodological criteria designed to improve the quality of the analysis were introduced; however, this makes it difficult to compare data with previous reports. For this reason, suicide rates were recalculated in most tables that draw comparisons with previous reports (2000–2009).
- Comparisons with global rates serve as a basis for reference but should be regarded with caution as the methodology of the WHO Global Report (5) differs from this report.
- Data and indicators obtained for this report do not always align with official national reports for reasons attributable to the methodology and time periods studied.

The problem of poor mortality data quality is not exclusive to suicide; however, considering the stigma and illegality of suicidal behavior in some countries, it is likely that there are more issues with poor recording and misclassification in suicide cases than in other causes of death. Moreover, the registration of suicide is a complex process that involves both medical and legal aspects, and includes various authorities (5).

Global comparisons

Suicides in the Region of the Americas make up 10.2% of the world total. The suicide rate in the Americas of 9.3 per 100,000 population is lower than the global rate of 11.4 (5). In 2012, at the global level, 1.4% of all deaths were suicides, ranking 15th as cause of death and confirming suicide as an important public health issue. In the Americas, suicide also represented 1.4% of all deaths but ranked 21st among causes of death. The proportion of suicides is greater in high-income countries (1.7%) than in low- and middle-income countries (1.4%). At the global level, WHO reported that among the 172 Member States with more than 300,000 population, the average female-males ratio was 3.2, slightly lower than that of the Americas (3.7). The WHO report *Preventing Suicide: A Global Imperative* (5) recognized that the data on suicide methods are limited in many countries. In high-income countries, on a global level, hanging is the most used method (50% of suicides) and firearms the second most used method (18%). North America has a markedly higher proportion of suicide with firearms (47%). One of the most common suicide methods in low- and middle-income countries, particularly in those with a high proportion of rural population that work in agriculture, is poisoning with pesticides or chemicals.

Final considerations

RELEVANT EPIDEMIOLOGICAL DATA

- Suicide continues to be a significant public health problem in the Region of the Americas.
- Approximately 82,000 people in the Americas died from suicide annually in 2010–2014, representing an age-adjusted rate of 9.3 per 100,000 population; 14.9 for males and 4.0 for females.
- Suicides in the Americas accounted for 10% of the world total.
- Rates of suicide mortality remained relatively stable in the Americas between 2000 and 2014.
- In the period 2010–2014, 56% of suicide deaths in the Region occurred in North America, which had the highest suicide rate at 12.8 per 100,000 population. The rate in Latin America and the Caribbean was 6.9.
- Suicide was the 21st principal cause of death in the Region; the 18th among males and the 35th among females. It climbed from the 22nd position in 2000–2004 to 20th in 2010–2014 when the comparison is limited to the same countries. It was the third leading cause of death among those aged 10–44 years.
- Males represented 79% of all suicide deaths in the Region. The female-males ratio of suicide mortality is 3.7 in the Americas.
- Age was a risk factor. In the Region, males aged 45 years and older had an increasing rate of suicide, with the highest rate among those 75 and older. Among females, the highest rates of suicide in the Americas were in the age group of 45–59.
- The most common suicide method was suffocation (generally by hanging) with 44% of deaths by this cause; followed by firearms (31%), intoxication with drugs and alcohol (9%), and poisoning with pesticides or chemicals (7%). In North America, firearms were the most common method of suicide, and in the non-Hispanic Caribbean it was poisoning with pesticides or chemicals.
- Suicide with pesticides or chemicals and with drugs or alcohol was a significant problem, especially in some countries in the Region.

KEY POINTS

 In Latin America and the Caribbean, it is essential that national suicide prevention programs be developed, especially in those countries with higher suicide rates. This report identifies 12 countries in the Region of the Americas with high suicide rates compared with the regional average, and where two-thirds of the suicide deaths are concentrated.

- Strengthening information systems and surveillance of suicidal behavior is required. Improving mortality registries alone is not sufficient. It is also necessary to develop registries of suicidal behavior and implement follow-up mechanisms in high-risk cases. There are initiatives in the Region, such as the Observatory of Suicidal Behavior of Central America and the Dominican Republic, which has been cosponsored by PAHO and the Central American Integration System (17).
- National systemic evaluation of available epidemiological data, including risk factors, is essential for suicide prevention programs.
- This report identifies the most frequent suicide methods. The availability of firearms is an
 important risk factor, particularly in North America. Access to pesticides in rural areas is
 another risk factor, especially in the non-Hispanic Caribbean. Alcohol and drug abuse need to
 be monitored for early identification and attention. Each method of suicide may require specific
 preventive interventions. For example, WHO has produced the SAFER technical package, which
 describes five high-impact strategies that can help governments reduce the harmful use of
 alcohol and its related health consequences, such as suicide (18).
- Countries should revise their existing legal framework regarding the availability of services and resources to prevent and address the problem of suicidal behavior.

Suicide should become a public health priority in the Americas. Some countries have already demonstrated that political will and well-structured programs successfully reduce suicide rates. This report presents a general overview and description of suicide at the regional level. This highlights WHO's commitment to tackling, in partnership with Member States, this health problem.

References

- 1. Pan American Health Organization. Suicide mortality in the Americas. Regional report. Washington, DC: PAHO; 2010. Available from: <u>https://www.paho.org/hq/dmdocuments/2010/Suicide%20Mortality%20</u> in%20the%20Americas.pdf
- 2. Pan American Health Organization. Suicide mortality in the Americas. Regional report. Washington, DC: PAHO; 2014. Available from: https://www.paho.org/hq/dmdocuments/2014/PAHO-mortality-suicide--final.pdf
- 3. Institute for Health Metrics and Evaluation. GBD Compare 2017. Seattle, WA: IHME, University of Washington; 2017. Available from: <u>https://vizhub.healthdata.org/gbd-compare</u>
- 4. Pan American Health Organization. The burden of mental disorders in the Region of the Americas, 2018. Washington, DC: PAHO; 2018. Available from: <u>https://iris.paho.org/bitstream/handle/10665.2/49578/9789275120286_eng.pdf</u>
- 5. World Health Organization. Preventing suicide: a global imperative. Geneva: WHO; 2014. Available from: https://www.who.int/mental_health/suicide-prevention/world_report_2014/en/
- Naghavi M. Global Burden of Disease Self-Harm Collaborators. Global, regional, and national burden of suicide mortality 1990 to 2016: systematic analysis for the Global Burden of Disease Study 2016. BMJ 2019;364:i94. <u>https://doi.org/10.1136/bmj.I94</u>
- 7. World Health Organization. Comprehensive mental health action plan 2013–2020. Geneva: WHO; 2013. Available from: https://www.who.int/mental_health/publications/action_plan/en/
- 8. Borges G, Chiu WT, Hwang I, Panchal BN, Ono Y, Sampson NA, et al. Prevalence, onset, and transitions among suicidal behaviors. In: Nock MK, Borges G, Ono Y, eds. Suicide: global perspectives from the WHO World Mental Health Surveys. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press; 2012. pp. 65–74.
- World Health Organization. National suicide prevention strategies: progress, examples and indicators. Geneva: WHO; 2018. Available from: <u>https://www.who.int/mental_health/suicide-prevention/national_strategies_2019/en/</u>
- Pan American Health Organization. Indigenous experiences in wellness and suicide prevention. Event report (Montreal, October 25th & 27th 2017). Washington, DC: PAHO; 2017. Available from: <u>https://iris.paho.org/handle/10665.2/34578</u>
- 11. World Health Organization. MhGAP intervention guide for mental, neurological and substance use disorders in non-specialized health settings. Version 2.0. Geneva: WHO; 2016. Available from: <u>https://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/10665/250239/1/9789241549790-eng.pdf</u>
- 12. Pan American Health Organization. Strategic plan of the Pan American Health Organization 2020-2025. Washington, DC: PAHO; 2019. Available from: <u>https://iris.paho.org/bitstream/handle/10665.2/51599/</u>CD57-OD359-e.pdf
- 13. United Nations. General Assembly Resolution 70/1, Transforming our world: the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development. New York: United Nations; 21 October 2015. Objective 3.4. (Document A/RES/70/1). Available from: https://www.un.org/ga/search/view_doc.asp?symbol=A/RES/70/1&Lang=E

- 14. Pan American Health Organization. Plan of Action on Mental Health. 53rd Directing Council/66th Session of the Regional Committee of WHO for the Americas. Washington, DC: PAHO; 3 October 2014. (Document CD53/8). Available from: https://www.paho.org/hq/dmdocuments/2016/CD53-8-e.pdf
- 15. World Health Organization. WHO methods and data sources for country-level causes of death 2000-2016. Global health estimates technical paper WHO/HIS/IER/GHE/2018.3. Geneva: WHO; March 2018. Available from: https://www.who.int/healthinfo/global_burden_disease/GlobalCOD_method_2000-2016.pdf
- 16. Pan American Health Organization. Prevention of suicidal behavior. Washington, DC: PAHO; 2016. Available from: <u>https://iris.paho.org/bitstream/handle/10665.2/31166/9789275119198-eng.pdf</u>
- 17. Pan American Health Organization; Secretaría Ejecutiva COMISCA [Internet]. Observatorio Centroamericano y República Dominicana de la Conducta Suicida. Available from: <u>http://comisca.net/content/observatorio_suicidio</u>
- 18. World Health Organization. The SAFER technical package: five areas of intervention at national and subnational levels. Geneva: WHO; 2019. Available from: <u>https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/the-safer-technical-package</u>



Table 1. Countries and territories with years not reporting mortality data

Country	Years unreported
Anguilla	2007
Antigua and Barbuda	2010, 2011
Aruba	2003
Bahamas	2003-2005
Barbados	2014
Bolivia (Plurinational State of)	2000-2014
Cayman Islands	2011, 2012, 2014
Cuba	2000
Curaçao	2000, 2008–2014
Dominica	2000
Dominican Republic	2014
French Guiana	2000
Grenada	2000, 2001
Guatemala	2000-2004
Haiti	2000-2014
Honduras	2000-2014
Jamaica	2007, 2008
Netherland Antilles	2000-2014
Saint Lucia	2007
Trinidad and Tobago	2013, 2014
Turks and Caicos Islands	2010, 2011
Uruguay	2011
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	2014
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	2011-2014
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	2013-2014

Table 2. Suicide rates per 100,000 population in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014

	No	on-standardiz	zed	Age-standardized			
Region and subregions	Both sexes	Female	Male	Both sexes	Female	Male	
Region of the Americas	9.58	4.10	15.20	9.31	4.00	14.93	
North America	13.93	6.20	22.03	12.83	5.76	20.13	
Latin America and the Caribbean	6.87	2.80	10.95	6.87	2.79	11.25	
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	6.68	2.51	10.49	6.66	2.51	11.05	
South America	6.91	2.89	11.06	6.89	2.86	11.24	
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	9.80	4.34	15.48	9.77	4.34	15.57	

Table 3. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2000–2014

	No	n-standardi	ized	Age-standardized			
Region and subregions		2005- 2009	2000- 2004	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004	
			Both	sexes			
Region of the Americas	9.68	9.18	8.85	9.38	9.03	8.95	
North America	13.93	12.73	12.06	12.83	11.73	11.27	
Latin America and the Caribbean	6.96	6.87	6.75	6.94	7.02	7.21	
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	6.99	6.70	5.99	6.90	6.65	6.55	
South America	6.91	6.93	7.03	6.89	7.08	7.43	
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	9.80	7.08	9.10	9.77	10.05	9.49	
	Female						
Region of the Americas	4.14	3.84	3.63	4.03	3.78	3.65	
North America	6.20	5.42	4.86	5.76	5.01	4.54	
Latin America and the Caribbean	2.82	2.80	2.82	2.81	2.81	2.88	
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	2.58	2.61	2.43	2.58	2.46	2.54	
South America	2.89	2.91	2.95	2.86	2.91	2.99	
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	4.34	1.38	4.01	4.34	4.40	4.0	
-			M	ale			
Region of the Americas	15.37	14.67	14.23	15.05	14.83	14.69	
North America	22.30	20.26	19.50	20.13	18.73	18.35	
Latin America and the Caribbean	11.11	11.04	10.79	11.37	11.82	11.94	
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	10.99	10.87	9.63	11.47	12.07	10.85	
South America	11.06	11.06	11.23	11.24	11.64	12.31	
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	15.48	12.96	15.48	15.57	16.00	15.23	

Note: Curaçao and Guatemala were not included due to data not being available in each five-year period.

Table 4. Ranking and percentage contribution (in parentheses) of suicide among other causes of death, by sex, inthe Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014

Region and subregions	Both sexes	Female	Male
Region of the Americas	21 (1.4)	35 (0.6)	18 (1.9)
North America	17 (1.6)	29 (0.7)	8 (2.5)
Latin America and the Caribbean	25 (1.1)	44 (0.5)	20 (1.5)
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	22 (1.1)	42 (0.5)	16 (1.6)
South America	26 (1.0)	43 (0.5)	20 (1.4)
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	23 (1.3)	36 (0.6)	16 (1.8)

Table 5. Ranking of suicide among other causes of death, by sex, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions,2000-2014

Region and	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004
subregions		Both sexes			Female				
Region of the Americas	20	22	22	35	38	37	18	17	16
North America	17	18	19	29	31	33	8	11	13
Latin America and the Caribbean	24	25	25	42	46	45	20	20	23
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	20	23	23	40	43	46	16	17	19
South America	26	26	26	43	45	46	20	20	22
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	23	22	24	36	36	39	16	16	17

Note: Curaçao and Guatemala were not included due to data not being available in each five-year period.

Table 6. Ranking and percentage contribution (in parentheses) of suicide among other causes of death, by age, inthe Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014

Region and subregions	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
				Both sexes			
Region of the Americas	49 (0.1)	3 (7.6)	3 (8.0)	3 (5.9)	12 (2.5)	29 (0.9)	49 (0.2)
North America	38 (0.2)	2 (16.7)	2 (16.8)	2 (11.9)	6 (4.2)	23 (1.3)	43 (0.3)
Latin America and the Caribbean	49 (0.1)	3 (5.9)	3 (5.8)	5 (3.8)	22 (1.4)	38 (0.5)	56 (0.2)
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	60 (0.1)	3 (7.3)	4 (6.8)	8 (3.8)	22 (1.3)	30 (0.5)	57 (0.2)
South America	47 (0.2)	3 (5.3)	3 (5.4)	5 (3.8)	22 (1.4)	41 (0.5)	56 (0.2)
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	44 (0.3)	3 (8.7)	3 (7.9)	4 (5.1)	14 (1.9)	31 (0.7)	52 (0.2)
				Female			
Region of the Americas	61 (0.1)	3 (8.5)	3 (7.2)	7 (4.0)	22 (1.6)	37 (0.5)	59 (0.1)
North America	52 (0.1)	2 (13.3)	3 (11.9)	2 (7.6)	12 (2.7)	28 (0.7)	56 (0.1)
Latin America and the Caribbean	64 (0.1)	3 (7.5)	4 (5.7)	13 (2.5)	35 (0.7)	56 (0.2)	66 (0.1)
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	67 (0.1)	3 (8.3)	4 (5.9)	17 (2.2)	35 (0.5)	55 (0.2)	65 (0.0)
South America	57 (0.1)	3 (7.0)	4 (5.5)	12 (2.5)	35 (0.8)	53 (0.2)	65 (0.1)
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	(0.0)	1 (11.4)	4 (7.6)	10 (2.9)	29 (0.9)	40 (0.3)	65 (0.1)
				Male			
Region of the Americas	42 (0.2)	3 (7.3)	3 (8.3)	3 (6.7)	9 (3.1)	24 (1.2)	37 (0.4)
North America	30 (0.3)	2 (18.3)	2 (18.5)	2 (14.2)	3 (5.1)	17 (1.7)	34 (0.5)
Latin America and the Caribbean	45 (0.2)	3 (5.3)	3 (5.8)	5 (4.4)	18 (1.7)	30 (0.7)	45 (0.3)
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	57 (0.1)	4 (6.8)	4 (7.0)	7 (4.4)	15 (1.8)	26 (0.8)	43 (0.3)
South America	41 (0.2)	3 (4.8)	3 (5.4)	4 (4.3)	17 (1.7)	32 (0.7)	48 (0.3)
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	36 (0.5)	3 (7.3)	3 (8.0)	4 (6.4)	11 (2.6)	26 (0.9)	43 (0.3)

Table 7. Percentage contribution of suicide among external causes of death, by sex and age, in the Region of theAmericas and its subregions, 2010–2014

Region and subregions	Total	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
				Both	sexes			
Region of the Americas	13.3	0.5	11.9	11.2	13.3	18.9	17.4	8.1
North America	22.1	0.6	24.5	22.3	25.7	29.0	26.6	9.9
Latin America and the Caribbean	8.8	0.4	9.4	8.2	8.8	10.9	10.5	6.0
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	9.5	0.2	13.0	10.5	9.1	10.4	10.4	5.9
South America	8.5	0.5	8.1	7.3	8.6	10.9	10.4	6.0
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	14.8	1.9	18.4	13.2	15.9	18.4	15.3	6.8
				Fen	nale			
Region of the Americas	12.7	0.3	19.9	16.4	17.5	20.5	14.6	2.6
North America	15.1	0.3	23.5	19.7	22.6	24.4	19.7	3.0
Latin America and the Caribbean	10.4	0.2	18.9	14.8	13.5	14.5	9.1	2.1
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	10.1	0.2	22.2	16.7	12.6	11.8	8.6	1.8
South America	10.4	0.3	17.1	13.8	13.7	15.3	9.2	2.2
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	16.4	0.0	36.3	23.7	22.1	19.6	14.1	2.8
				Ma	ale			
Region of the Americas	13.5	0.6	10.1	10.4	12.5	18.4	18.4	12.8
North America	25.6	0.8	24.9	23.0	26.7	31.0	29.6	16.5
Latin America and the Caribbean	8.5	0.5	7.4	7.4	8.2	10.2	10.9	9.1
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	9.3	0.2	10.5	9.6	8.7	10.1	10.9	9.1
South America	8.0	0.6	6.4	6.6	7.9	10.1	10.8	9.0
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	14.4	2.9	13.0	11.4	14.9	18.2	15.6	10.4

Regions and subregions	Non- standardized	Age- standardized	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Region of the Americas	3.7	3.7	3.6	2.1	4.2	3.9	3.3	4.1	7.8
North America	3.6	3.5	5.0	2.9	4.3	3.4	2.9	3.7	7.9
Latin America and the Caribbean	3.9	4.0	3.2	1.8	2.0	4.5	4.1	5.0	17.0
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	4.2	4.4	2.2	1.7	4.0	5.2	5.4	5.3	8.4
South America	3.8	3.9	3.4	1.9	4.2	4.3	3.7	4.9	7.3
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	3.6	3.6	27.3	1.2	2.7	4.2	5.2	4.3	6.2

Table 8. Female-males suicide ratio, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014

Table 9. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions,both sexes, 2010-2014

Region and subregions	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Region of the Americas	0.03	4.58	10.73	10.74	13.64	12.15	13.47
North America	0.03	5.04	13.86	15.83	20.28	15.53	15.97
Latin America and the Caribbean	0.04	4.37	9.20	8.03	8.09	8.55	10.44
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	0.02	4.48	9.04	7.54	7.54	8.57	11.10
South America	0.04	4.28	9.21	8.15	8.20	8.50	10.19
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	0.08	5.55	12.29	13.06	12.04	10.33	9.73

Table 10. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions,males, 2010-2014

Region and subregions	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Region of the Americas	0.05	6.17	17.16	17.13	21.22	20.21	27.17
North America	0.05	7.41	22.22	24.40	30.39	25.18	32.24
Latin America and the Caribbean	0.05	5.61	7.12	13.22	13.30	14.85	20.99
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	0.03	5.65	14.33	12.73	13.07	14.76	21.70
South America	0.07	5.58	14.74	13.27	13.22	14.82	20.74
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	0.15	6.03	17.91	21.47	20.50	17.19	18.72

Table 11. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions,	
females, 2010-2014	

Region and subregions	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Region of the Americas	0.01	2.92	4.10	4.39	6.41	4.90	3.48
North America	0.01	2.55	5.12	7.19	10.30	6.73	4.06
Latin America and the Caribbean	0.02	3.08	3.61	2.93	3.24	2.97	1.24
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	0.01	3.27	3.62	2.46	2.43	2.81	2.59
South America	0.02	2.94	3.54	3.09	3.54	3.00	2.83
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	0.00	5.05	6.57	5.10	3.97	4.00	3.00

Table 12. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2000–2014

Region and subregions	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004
	:	Suffocatior	า		Firearm	
Region of the Americas	43.7	40.5	36.2	31.1	32.0	35.4
North America	27.4	25.8	23.5	46.9	46.9	49.7
Latin America and the Caribbean	64.7	58.4	51.0	10.7	13.9	18.7
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	70.2	62.6	55.3	8.2	10.4	12.4
South America	63.4	57.2	49.9	11.9	15.6	21.4
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	35.2	34.6	31.9	2.5	3.8	4.1
	Poiso	ning drug/a	lcohol	Poisoning pesticide/chemical		
Region of the Americas	9.1	9.0	7.9	7.3	9.8	11.3
North America	13.9	14.3	12.6	3.3	4.4	5.5
Latin America and the Caribbean	2.9	2.5	2.4	12.6	16.5	18.0
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	2.3	1.7	2.2	14.1	18.7	22.5
South America	3.2	2.7	2.4	10.6	14.7	15.3
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	2.1	3.1	3.5	56.0	53.3	53.4

Note: Curaçao and Guatemala were not included due to data not being available in each five-year period.

Table 13. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas and itssubregions, males, 2000-2014

Region and subregions	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004	
		Suffocation			Firearm		
Region of the Americas	45.5	42.7	38.4	34.7	35.7	39.2	
North America	27.8	26.7	24.4	52.4	52.3	54.7	
Latin America and the Caribbean	67.8	61.9	54.9	12.2	15.6	20.8	
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	73.4	67.5	60.7	9.5	11.4	13.9	
South America	66.4	60.6	53.3	13.7	17.5	23.8	
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	38.1	38.3	35.1	3.1	4.7	4.8	
	Poiso	ning drug/al	cohol	Poisonin	g pesticide/	/chemical	
Region of the Americas	5.5	5.4	4.7	6.5	8.5	9.7	
North America	8.4	8.5	7.6	3.3	4.4	5.4	
Latin America and the Caribbean	1.8	1.6	1.4	10.5	13.6	14.7	
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	1.2	0.9	1.1	11.7	15.4	19.0	
South America	2.0	1.8	1.5	8.7	11.7	12.0	
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	1.7	2.3	3.0	53.4	50.3	51.1	

Note: Curaçao and Guatemala were not included due to data not being available in each five-year period.

Table 14. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas and itssubregions, females, 2000–2014

Region and subregions	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004
		Suffocation	n		Firearm	
Region of the Americas	37.2	32.4	27.6	18.3	18.5	21.1
North America	26.1	22.4	20.1	28.0	27.3	30.3
Latin America and the Caribbean	52.8	45.1	36.1	4.8	7.4	10.6
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	56.8	48.3	34.2	2.9	4.7	6.2
South America	52.2	44.8	37.2	5.6	8.5	12.5
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	25.2	22.0	20.9	0.4	0.8	1.9
	Poiso	ning drugs/a	alcohol	Poisoning	pesticides/	chemicals
Region of the Americas	22.3	22.4	20.1	10.4	14.7	17.3
North America	32.9	35.2	32.4	3.3	4.6	5.8
Latin America and the Caribbean	7.3	6.2	6.1	20.4	27.5	30.4
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	6.8	6.2	6.6	24.0	29.0	36.1
South America	7.6	6.2	5.9	17.7	25.8	27.4
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	3.5	5.9	5.1	65.1	63.7	61.3

Note: Curaçao and Guatemala were not included due to data not being available in each five-year period.

Table 15. Fire as a percentage of total methods of suicide, by five-year groups, in the Region of the Americas andits subregions, by sex, 2000–2014

Region and subregions	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004	2010- 2014	2005- 2009	2000- 2004
		Female			Male	
Region of the Americas	1.8	2.1	3.0	0.5	0.6	0.6
North America	0.6	0.8	0.8	0.4	0.5	0.5
Latin America and the Caribbean	3.5	3.8	5.5	0.7	0.8	0.8
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	4.6	6.6	11.6	0.5	0.5	0.8
South America	3.1	2.9	3.2	0.8	0.8	0.8
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	1.4	2.5	7.0	0.6	0.6	0.6

Table 16. Drowning, cutting, jumping, and blunt force, automobile, or other specified, as percentage of totalmethods of suicide, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, by sex, 2010-2014

Region and subregions	Drowning	Cutting	Jumping	Blunt/ auto/ other specified	Drowning	Cutting	Jumping	Blunt/ auto/ other specified
		Fem	nale			М	ale	
Region of the Americas	1.7	1.3	4.3	0.8	0.8	1.7	2.9	0.7
North America	1.8	1.5	4.4	0.8	0.9	2.0	3.5	0.7
Latin America and the Caribbean	1.5	1.0	4.1	0.7	0.7	1.4	2.0	0.6
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	0.6	0.8	1.9	0.1	0.3	1.1	1.1	0.2
South America	1.9	1.1	4.9	0.9	0.9	1.5	2.4	0.8
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	1.3	0.3	1.9	0.4	0.3	0.5	1.3	0.2

Table 17. Age-standardized suicide rates per 100,000 population, by five-year groups 2000-2014, both sexes, inthe 12 countries of the Americas with highest suicide rate in 2010-2014

	2005-2009	2000-2004
9.43	10.63	9.55
11.64	12.15	11.44
11.82	11.74	12.69
11.66	14.11	11.60
11.02	13.03	11.04
9.36	13.01	11.69
39.18	31.18	34.79
11.01	17.53	13.32
35.85	30.38	38.89
14.73	15.21	13.64
13.04	11.22	11.82
17.22	17.01	16.06
	39.18 11.01 35.85 14.73 13.04	39.1831.1811.0117.5335.8530.3814.7315.2113.0411.22

Table 18.Percentage of external causes of death due to suicide in the Region of the Americas and its subregions,2010-2014

Region and subregions	Both sexes	Female	Male
Region of the Americas	13.3	12.7	13.5
North America	22.1	15.1	25.6
Latin America and the Caribbean	8.8	10.4	8.5
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	9.5	10.1	9.3
South America	8.5	10.4	8.0
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	14.8	16.4	14.4
Figures

Figure 1. Years of life lost (YLL), by age group, in the Region of the Americas, males, 2014



Figure 2. Years of life lost (YLL), by age group, in the Region of the Americas, females, 2014



Figure 3. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2010–2014



Figure 4. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, males, 2010–2014



Figure 5. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, females, 2010–2014





Figure 6. Method of suicide in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2010–2014

Figure 7. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2010–2014



Figure 8. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, males, 2010–2014



Figure 9. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, females, 2010-2014







Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico







Cutting

Drowning

Poisoning drugs/alcohol

Fire

Suffocation

Suicide rate per 100,000 < 2 2 - 4 4 - 6 6-8 8 - 10 10 - 12 12 - 14 14 - 18 18 - 22 22 - 37

Figure 10. Suicide rates per 100,000 population in the Region of the Americas by countries, both sexes, 2010–2014

≥ 37



Figure 11. Suicide rates per 100,000 population in the Region of the Americas by countries, males, 2010–2014

Figure 12. Suicide rates per 100,000 population in the Region of the Americas by countries, females, 2010–2014



Appendix tables

Table A1. Age-unadjusted and age-adjusted suicide rates per 100,000 population, countries and territories inthe Region of the Americas, 2010–2014

Countries and territoriesAnguillaAntigua and BarbudaArgentinaArubaBahamasBarbados	Both sexes 1.41 0.00 9.52 5.47 1.66 0.37 6.96 1.84	Female 0.00 0.00 3.61 3.16 0.85 0.00 2.44	Male 2.93 0.00 15.74 8.03 2.52 0.78	Both sexes 1.51 0.00 9.43 5.03 1.56 0.32	Female 0.00 0.00 3.66 3.01 0.83 0.00	Male 2.90 0.63 15.66 7.22 2.43 0.67
Antigua and Barbuda Argentina Aruba Bahamas	0.00 9.52 5.47 1.66 0.37 6.96	0.00 3.61 3.16 0.85 0.00	0.00 15.74 8.03 2.52 0.78	0.00 9.43 5.03 1.56	0.00 3.66 3.01 0.83	0.63 15.66 7.22 2.43
Argentina Aruba Bahamas	9.52 5.47 1.66 0.37 6.96	3.61 3.16 0.85 0.00	15.74 8.03 2.52 0.78	9.43 5.03 1.56	3.66 3.01 0.83	15.66 7.22 2.43
Aruba Bahamas	5.47 1.66 0.37 6.96	3.16 0.85 0.00	8.03 2.52 0.78	5.03 1.56	3.01 0.83	7.22 2.43
Bahamas	1.66 0.37 6.96	0.85	2.52 0.78	1.56	0.83	2.43
	0.37 6.96	0.00	0.78			
Barbados	6.96			0.32	0.00	0.67
		2.44	11 50		0.00	0.07
Belize	1.84		11.52	8.09	2.12	14.00
Bermuda		0.59	3.18	1.81	0.65	2.99
Brazil	6.24	2.65	9.97	6.18	2.59	10.09
Canada	12.93	6.57	19.41	11.64	6.08	17.29
Cayman Islands	2.03	0.00	4.17	2.08	0.00	4.22
Chile	12.31	4.43	20.38	11.82	4.32	19.70
Colombia	7.92	2.92	13.10	7.88	2.88	13.26
Costa Rica	8.66	2.56	14.76	8.47	2.50	14.52
Cuba	14.55	5.94	23.15	11.66	4.72	18.90
Dominica	4.29	0.60	7.93	4.10	0.59	7.49
Dominican Republic	6.89	2.53	11.30	7.53	2.64	12.61
Ecuador	8.73	4.73	12.74	8.70	4.55	12.96
El Salvador	10.73	4.44	17.87	11.02	4.28	19.32
French Guiana	9.00	4.80	13.22	9.36	4.78	14.15
Grenada	0.63	0.00	1.26	0.72	0.00	1.43
Guadeloupe	8.87	3.97	14.59	8.38	3.85	13.94
Guatemala	3.25	1.77	4.79	3.40	1.58	5.48
Guyana	36.85	17.33	56.33	39.18	17.28	61.82
Jamaica	0.75	0.11	1.39	0.77	0.11	1.47
Martinique	7.98	3.09	13.81	7.15	2.51	12.84
Mexico	5.52	2.06	9.03	5.57	2.01	9.28

Table A1. Continued

	No	on-standardiz	ed	Ag	ge-standardiz	ed
Countries and territories	Both sexes	Female	Male	Both sexes	Female	Male
Montserrat	4.10	0.00	8.21	3.74	0.00	7.97
Nicaragua	11.43	5.30	17.80	11.01	4.85	17.71
Panama	5.04	1.33	8.73	5.13	1.33	8.99
Paraguay	8.43	5.95	10.84	8.18	5.57	10.77
Peru	2.93	1.85	4.01	2.96	1.80	4.17
Puerto Rico	7.23	2.21	12.69	6.59	2.06	11.76
Saint Kitts and Nevis	3.00	3.67	2.31	3.18	3.67	2.79
Saint Lucia	7.18	1.68	12.92	7.11	1.62	12.94
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	4.42	1.61	7.18	4.37	1.63	7.05
Suriname	35.09	19.08	51.04	35.85	19.14	53.45
Trinidad and Tobago	15.47	6.00	25.18	14.73	5.87	24.05
Turks and Caicos Islands	1.49	0.00	2.88	1.46	0.00	2.83
United States of America	14.21	6.20	22.44	13.04	5.77	20.57
Uruguay	18.52	7.82	30.11	17.22	7.26	28.37
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	4.38	1.41	7.38	4.52	1.42	7.81
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	8.83	5.83	12.12	8.86	5.27	12.97

Countries and territories	Non- standardized	Age- standardized	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Anguilla	30.3	30.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	401.8	1.0
Antigua and Barbuda	1.0	7.3	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0
Argentina	4.4	4.3	2.6	5.5	4.6	3.3	4.9	10.3
Aruba	2.5	2.4	1.0	65.3	2.1	121.2	1.7	0.0
Bahamas	3.0	2.9	0.9	3.2	1.7	8.1	1.2	32.3
Barbados	8.8	7.7	1.0	1.0	7.3	27.6	1.0	1.0
Belize	4.7	6.6	0.4	2.9	8.7	17.6	384.4	197.4
Bermuda	5.4	4.6	1.0	96.3	1.0	49.6	56.3	1.0
Brazil	3.8	3.9	2.2	4.4	4.1	3.3	4.4	6.0
Canada	3.0	2.8	1.9	2.8	2.9	2.8	3.2	5.1
Cayman Islands	42.7	43.2	149.8	1.0	1.0	81.0	1.0	1.0
Chile	4.6	4.6	2.5	4.8	4.4	4.1	7.4	12.6
Colombia	4.5	4.6	1.8	4.3	5.5	6.2	7.3	17.1
Costa Rica	5.8	5.8	3.1	4.1	6.4	7.0	6.7	11.6
Cuba	3.9	4.0	2.1	3.7	5.2	3.6	3.0	5.2
Dominica	13.3	12.7	33.3	0.9	57.9	198.7	158.8	1.0
Dominican Republic	4.5	4.8	1.3	2.5	4.8	7.5	4.6	11.2
Ecuador	2.7	2.8	1.2	3.0	3.4	4.7	5.5	6.0
El Salvador	4.0	4.5	1.2	3.9	5.5	7.0	17.8	7.0
French Guiana	2.8	3.0	1.9	0.9	3.5	12.0	72.7	4.0
Grenada	13.6	15.3	20.7	1.0	13.8	1.0	87.8	1.0
Guadeloupe	3.7	3.6	1.7	9.9	2.6	4.2	8.3	5.8
Guatemala	2.7	3.5	0.9	3.3	4.0	7.8	9.3	21.8
Guyana	3.3	3.6	1.0	2.7	4.2	4.7	4.4	9.1
Jamaica	12.4	13.2	1.4	5.5	33.1	18.7	6.5	23.0
Martinique	4.5	5.1	5.5	188.3	5.7	2.7	3.0	7.6
Mexico	4.4	4.6	2.0	4.2	5.2	5.7	7.8	18.6
Montserrat	83.1	80.7	1.0	1.0	227.8	1.0	1.0	1.0
Nicaragua	3.4	3.6	1.1	3.9	5.3	6.6	5.5	20.8
Panama	6.6	6.8	2.3	5.2	9.5	7.6	45.0	7.6
Paraguay	1.8	1.9	1.0	1.9	2.4	1.9	3.6	5.8
Peru	2.2	2.3	1.1	1.7	2.4	3.9	4.8	2.9
Puerto Rico	5.7	5.7	3.3	12.2	4.4	5.2	8.1	17.7
Saint Kitts and Nevis	0.6	0.8	1.0	1.0	0.6	0.0	1.0	221.3

Table A2. Female-males suicide ratio, by age group, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014

Table A2. Continued

Countries and territories	Non- standardized	Age- standardized	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Saint Lucia	7.7	8.0	3.7	2.2	4.6	160.2	320.8	198.4
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	4.5	4.3	79.9	0.0	7.8	3.8	71.8	1.3
Suriname	2.7	2.8	0.7	2.5	3.2	3.9	3.4	7.2
Trinidad and Tobago	4.2	4.1	2.2	2.6	4.6	5.7	3.9	6.8
Turks and Caicos Islands	29.8	29.3	1.0	1.0	96.0	1.0	1.0	1.0
United States of America	3.6	3.6	3.1	4.5	3.4	3.0	3.8	8.3
Uruguay	3.8	3.9	3.5	5.9	3.8	3.1	3.4	7.0
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	5.2	5.5	2.2	5.6	6.7	6.6	6.3	7.2
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	2.1	2.5	1.0	227.9	3.1	0.8	3.3	1.2

Table A3. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, both sexes, countries and territories in the Regionof the Americas, 2010-2014

Countries and territories	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Anguilla	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	20.97	0.00
Antigua and Barbuda	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Argentina	0.03	8.10	16.88	10.60	9.13	9.80	12.14
Aruba	0.00	0.00	3.33	8.58	5.58	10.08	5.65
Bahamas	0.00	0.62	2.24	1.51	3.24	1.70	1.22
Barbados	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.30	1.25	0.00	0.00
Belize	0.00	3.51	9.16	8.26	11.27	19.93	9.83
Bermuda	0.00	0.00	4.74	2.46	2.34	2.61	0.00
Brazil	0.03	2.48	6.72	7.77	8.32	8.17	9.60
Canada	0.02	5.85	12.46	14.28	19.06	12.92	11.06
Cayman Islands	0.00	7.41	0.00	0.00	3.87	0.00	0.00
Chile	0.01	5.87	14.90	15.00	15.55	13.54	15.06
Colombia	0.15	6.97	13.03	8.81	7.82	8.65	9.98
Costa Rica	0.07	4.39	11.15	11.56	10.51	9.25	7.44
Cuba	0.00	2.80	6.84	11.03	17.48	24.96	39.59
Dominica	0.00	1.66	6.35	2.87	10.38	7.94	0.00
Dominican Republic	0.06	2.27	5.87	9.18	10.22	14.40	12.98
Ecuador	0.00	10.13	14.39	9.48	7.80	8.95	8.16
El Salvador	0.08	7.10	17.94	15.31	9.93	11.16	11.40
French Guiana	0.00	12.38	10.64	11.12	7.81	3.68	12.27
Grenada	0.00	1.00	0.00	0.66	0.00	4.09	0.00
Guadeloupe	0.00	3.20	9.01	11.39	11.35	11.86	9.38
Guatemala	0.03	3.15	5.63	3.98	3.41	3.84	2.56
Guyana	0.44	19.77	48.91	49.14	57.32	37.75	46.57
Jamaica	0.00	0.43	0.23	1.16	0.88	1.03	0.99
Martinique	0.77	2.60	8.85	7.78	8.74	10.49	14.41
Mexico	0.00	4.54	8.74	6.69	5.82	5.57	6.15
Montserrat	0.00	0.00	0.00	10.84	0.00	0.00	0.00
Nicaragua	0.22	10.73	21.58	14.38	8.96	7.57	7.39
Panama	0.00	3.25	7.70	6.18	5.44	5.38	8.49
Paraguay	0.19	8.91	14.98	10.20	6.23	6.89	7.11
Peru	0.04	2.67	4.58	3.11	3.15	3.75	3.92
Puerto Rico	0.00	1.63	5.69	7.27	12.48	10.08	9.37
Saint Kitts and Nevis	0.00	0.00	0.00	5.52	3.93	0.00	8.83

Table A3. Continued

Countries and territories	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Saint Lucia	0.00	3.02	5.93	9.32	7.83	15.34	8.71
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	0.00	3.99	2.06	5.72	5.46	3.51	7.62
Suriname	0.00	18.75	43.57	48.32	39.86	40.02	52.63
Trinidad and Tobago	0.00	7.76	22.08	20.03	16.07	15.62	15.32
Turks and Caicos Islands	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.90	0.00	0.00	0.00
United States of America	0.03	5.01	14.12	16.12	20.51	15.90	16.66
Uruguay	0.00	7.81	21.18	20.06	22.05	24.10	31.34
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	0.02	3.04	6.26	5.26	4.75	5.83	7.53
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	0.00	0.00	10.82	14.94	10.27	9.80	7.04

Table A4. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, males, countries and territories in the Region ofthe Americas, 2010-2014

Countries and territories	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Anguilla	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	40.18	0.00
Antigua and Barbuda	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Argentina	0.06	11.66	28.33	17.45	14.28	17.16	27.71
Aruba	0.00	0.00	6.43	11.92	12.02	13.06	0.00
Bahamas	0.00	0.59	3.42	1.89	6.00	1.87	3.13
Barbados	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.63	2.66	0.00	0.00
Belize	0.00	2.17	13.69	15.11	21.11	38.34	19.64
Bermuda	0.00	0.00	9.53	2.43	4.86	5.53	0.00
Brazil	0.04	3.37	10.86	12.59	13.12	14.02	18.85
Canada	0.02	7.61	18.23	21.19	28.07	19.89	20.41
Cayman Islands	0.00	14.88	0.00	0.00	8.00	0.00	0.00
Chile	0.03	8.28	24.33	24.35	25.15	24.93	33.66
Colombia	0.19	8.84	20.99	15.10	13.93	16.14	21.69
Costa Rica	0.14	6.58	17.72	19.92	18.56	16.37	14.84
Cuba	0.00	3.77	10.60	18.39	27.42	37.59	71.01
Dominica	0.00	3.23	6.18	5.69	19.77	15.78	0.00
Dominican Republic	0.11	2.52	8.40	15.36	18.21	23.98	24.97
Ecuador	0.00	11.11	21.37	14.70	13.00	15.52	15.00
El Salvador	0.10	7.71	29.13	27.95	19.31	23.95	21.95
French Guiana	0.00	16.03	10.19	17.62	14.28	7.17	21.34
Grenada	0.00	1.97	0.00	1.28	0.00	8.68	0.00
Guadeloupe	0.00	4.03	16.16	17.75	19.12	22.81	18.19
Guatemala	0.02	3.06	8.63	6.54	6.57	7.46	5.34
Guyana	0.85	19.73	71.41	79.81	94.55	63.30	92.30
Jamaica	0.00	0.50	0.45	2.32	1.77	1.80	2.20
Martinique	1.55	4.35	18.73	14.86	13.23	16.26	29.04
Mexico	0.00	6.02	13.98	11.26	10.19	10.11	13.08
Montserrat	0.00	0.00	0.00	22.68	0.00	0.00	0.00
Nicaragua	0.30	11.26	33.98	24.73	16.54	13.73	15.93
Panama	0.00	4.51	12.79	11.11	9.69	10.84	15.88
Paraguay	0.27	8.71	19.38	14.36	8.11	10.76	12.83
Peru	0.08	2.73	5.81	4.41	5.12	6.37	6.16
Puerto Rico	0.00	2.46	10.47	12.08	22.11	19.46	21.10
Saint Kitts and Nevis	0.00	0.00	0.00	4.10	0.00	0.00	22.03

Table A4. Continued

Countries and territories	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Saint Lucia	0.00	4.75	8.19	15.56	15.92	31.98	19.74
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	0.00	7.89	0.00	9.98	8.47	7.08	8.76
Suriname	0.00	15.88	61.79	73.42	63.56	64.76	94.47
Trinidad and Tobago	0.00	10.68	31.88	32.97	27.57	25.46	31.01
Turks and Caicos Islands	0.00	0.00	0.00	9.50	0.00	0.00	0.00
United States of America	0.05	7.46	22.79	24.92	30.76	25.90	33.87
Uruguay	0.00	12.00	35.83	31.77	33.93	39.03	68.90
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	0.05	4.16	10.56	9.19	8.38	10.40	14.86
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	0.00	0.00	22.69	23.62	9.29	15.54	7.90

Table A5. Suicide rates per 100,000 population, by age group, females, countries and territories in the Region ofthe Americas, 2010-2014

Countries and territories	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Anguilla	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Antigua and Barbuda	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Argentina	0.00	4.41	5.13	3.76	4.28	3.50	2.70
Aruba	0.00	0.00	0.00	5.66	0.00	7.50	9.54
Bahamas	0.00	0.64	1.05	1.13	0.74	1.55	0.00
Barbados	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Belize	0.00	4.85	4.70	1.73	1.20	0.00	0.00
Bermuda	0.00	0.00	0.00	2.49	0.00	0.00	0.00
Brazil	0.01	1.55	2.49	3.04	3.92	3.18	3.13
Canada	0.02	3.99	6.44	7.32	10.05	6.25	3.96
Cayman Islands	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Chile	0.00	3.36	5.10	5.48	6.21	3.38	2.67
Colombia	0.10	5.02	4.89	2.73	2.23	2.20	1.27
Costa Rica	0.00	2.11	4.34	3.14	2.66	2.44	1.28
Cuba	0.00	1.76	2.86	3.51	7.65	12.67	13.56
Dominica	0.00	0.00	6.53	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Dominican Republic	0.01	2.01	3.34	3.18	2.41	5.22	2.24
Ecuador	0.00	9.12	7.24	4.27	2.79	2.84	2.48
El Salvador	0.05	6.48	7.54	5.12	2.75	1.34	3.12
French Guiana	0.00	8.58	11.08	5.00	1.19	0.00	5.39
Grenada	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Guadeloupe	0.00	2.33	1.63	6.70	4.55	2.75	3.16
Guatemala	0.04	3.25	2.62	1.64	0.84	0.80	0.25
Guyana	0.00	19.82	26.40	18.98	19.91	14.49	10.15
Jamaica	0.00	0.36	0.00	0.07	0.00	0.27	0.00
Martinique	0.00	0.79	0.00	2.59	4.93	5.50	3.82
Mexico	0.00	3.01	3.34	2.18	1.78	1.30	0.70
Montserrat	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Nicaragua	0.13	10.17	8.82	4.69	2.50	2.49	0.77
Panama	0.00	1.94	2.46	1.17	1.27	0.24	2.08
Paraguay	0.12	9.12	10.41	5.88	4.28	2.95	2.21
Peru	0.00	2.60	3.33	1.80	1.32	1.33	2.15
Puerto Rico	0.00	0.75	0.86	2.72	4.27	2.41	1.19
Saint Kitts and Nevis	0.00	0.00	0.00	6.90	7.83	0.00	0.00

Table A5. Continued

Countries and territories	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+
Saint Lucia	0.00	1.27	3.68	3.39	0.00	0.00	0.00
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	0.00	0.00	4.15	1.27	2.26	0.00	6.75
Suriname	0.00	21.79	24.40	22.80	16.25	19.25	22.22
Trinidad and Tobago	0.00	4.77	12.08	7.13	4.82	6.59	4.54
Turks and Caicos Islands	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
United States of America	0.01	2.44	5.04	7.23	10.40	6.84	4.10
Uruguay	0.01	3.44	6.04	8.42	11.09	11.50	9.90
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	0.00	1.88	1.87	1.36	1.26	1.65	2.05
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	0.00	0.00	0.00	7.55	11.16	4.65	6.35

Table A6. Method of suicide as percentage of total, both sexes, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014

Countries and territories	Suffocation	Poisoning drugs	Poisoning chemicals	Firearm	Fire	Jumping	Drowning	Cutting	Blunt force	Other
Anguilla	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Antigua and Barbuda	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Argentina	73.0	1.1	1.2	18.2	0.8	1.3	1.0	0.8	0.3	2.2
Aruba	65.8	11.4	15.2	3.8	0.0	0.0	0.0	3.8	0.0	0.0
Bahamas	82.9	0.0	0.0	6.7	0.0	0.0	0.0	3.0	7.3	0.0
Barbados	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Belize	62.3	2.6	20.5	7.9	0.8	1.8	3.1	1.2	0.0	0.0
Bermuda	50.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	33.3	0.0	16.7
Brazil	63.8	4.9	8.9	9.6	2.1	4.0	1.2	1.8	1.4	2.3
Canada	46.6	18.5	5.7	13.8	0.7	7.4	2.7	2.9	1.5	0.3
Cayman Islands	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Chile	83.6	2.2	2.4	6.5	0.6	2.2	0.5	0.9	0.5	0.7
Colombia	49.0	2.1	20.6	19.5	0.5	4.1	1.0	2.1	0.3	0.9
Costa Rica	57.0	5.5	17.1	15.5	0.3	2.6	0.3	1.4	0.2	0.1
Cuba	75.7	5.0	4.0	1.8	7.0	3.5	0.6	1.8	0.4	0.1
Dominica	50.0	0.0	43.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	6.9
Dominican Republic	59.6	1.0	13.6	17.5	0.5	0.8	1.0	0.3	0.0	5.8
Ecuador	58.8	2.2	30.9	5.0	0.1	0.4	0.2	0.4	0.1	1.9
El Salvador	35.2	0.5	62.2	1.4	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.3	0.1	0.1
French Guiana	59.5	1.0	11.5	21.3	0.0	1.3	1.0	1.0	0.0	3.3
Grenada	0.0	33.3	66.7	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Guadeloupe	61.9	10.4	7.2	5.9	1.2	7.0	1.1	0.5	0.0	4.9
Guatemala	36.1	3.5	46.2	8.5	0.0	0.0	1.4	0.6	0.0	3.6
Guyana	28.3	1.8	68.0	0.6	0.6	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.0	0.4
Jamaica	73.3	0.0	13.4	4.7	0.0	2.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	6.1
Martinique	63.9	8.2	5.4	4.9	2.0	11.3	1.4	2.3	0.0	0.7
Mexico	77.6	1.7	7.4	9.7	0.2	0.9	0.3	1.1	0.1	1.1
Montserrat	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Nicaragua	34.5	2.2	56.3	4.2	0.1	0.1	0.6	0.6	0.2	1.3
Panama	73.7	1.7	18.8	3.3	0.0	1.7	0.0	0.3	0.0	0.6
Paraguay	67.6	1.4	5.5	19.4	0.4	1.3	1.9	1.3	0.6	0.7

Table A6. Continued

Countries and territories	Suffocation	Poisoning drugs	Poisoning chemicals	Firearm	Fire	Jumping	Drowning	Cutting	Blunt force	Other
Peru	22.9	1.0	25.0	1.9	0.1	0.1	1.2	0.2	0.0	47.5
Puerto Rico	71.8	5.2	1.6	13.0	1.8	3.0	0.8	0.8	0.8	1.2
Saint Kitts and Nevis	73.5	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	26.5
Saint Lucia	39.3	0.0	55.8	1.7	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	3.2
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	45.9	4.5	49.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Suriname	22.9	1.3	69.3	2.6	0.5	1.7	0.1	0.3	0.8	0.4
Trinidad and Tobago	32.1	0.8	63.2	1.0	1.2	0.4	0.9	0.4	0.0	0.0
Turks and Caicos Islands	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
United States of America	25.2	13.5	3.1	50.5	0.4	3.4	1.0	1.8	0.7	0.5
Uruguay	60.9	3.3	1.3	23.8	0.7	2.7	3.8	0.9	0.3	2.3
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	68.8	1.7	17.6	7.6	0.7	1.6	0.5	0.9	0.1	0.4
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	61.5	0.0	0.0	23.1	0.0	7.7	3.8	3.8	0.0	0.0

Table A7. Method of suicide as percentage of total, males, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas,2010-2014

Countries and territories	Suffocation	Poisoning drugs	Poisoning chemicals	Firearm	Fire	Jumping	Drowning	Cutting	Blunt force	Other
Anguilla	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Antigua and Barbuda	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Argentina	73.1	0.5	1.0	20.2	0.4	1.2	0.8	0.7	0.3	1.8
Aruba	78.2	5.5	10.9	5.5	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Bahamas	81.8	0.0	0.0	9.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	4.1	5.1	0.0
Barbados	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Belize	58.6	3.1	22.3	9.6	0.9	2.2	1.9	1.4	0.0	0.0
Bermuda	40.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	40.0	0.0	20.0
Brazil	68.1	3.1	7.1	11.0	1.2	3.1	0.9	1.9	1.4	2.0
Canada	48.3	12.2	6.3	17.8	0.7	7.2	2.3	3.2	1.5	0.3
Cayman Islands	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Chile	84.8	1.0	2.3	7.4	0.5	1.8	0.3	0.8	0.4	0.7
Colombia	51.0	1.4	16.8	22.6	0.4	3.6	1.0	2.3	0.3	0.8
Costa Rica	58.4	3.7	16.1	16.9	0.2	2.5	0.4	1.5	0.2	0.1
Cuba	84.5	2.2	3.3	2.1	2.0	3.0	0.5	1.9	0.5	0.0
Dominica	46.3	0.0	46.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	7.4
Dominican Republic	60.4	0.6	11.1	20.5	0.5	0.6	0.9	0.2	0.0	5.1
Ecuador	62.9	2.2	25.3	6.3	0.0	0.4	0.2	0.5	0.1	2.1
El Salvador	39.1	0.6	58.0	1.6	0.0	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.1	0.2
French Guiana	58.8	0.0	10.0	26.3	0.0	1.8	0.0	1.4	0.0	1.8
Grenada	0.0	33.3	66.7	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Guadeloupe	67.8	5.6	6.4	7.7	0.8	4.5	0.0	0.7	0.0	6.5
Guatemala	41.2	3.0	38.8	11.1	0.0	0.1	1.7	0.8	0.0	3.4
Guyana	33.2	1.4	63.4	0.8	0.5	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.5
Jamaica	71.1	0.0	14.5	5.0	0.0	2.8	0.0	0.0	0.0	6.6
Martinique	66.3	6.0	4.3	6.2	1.7	10.8	0.9	2.9	0.0	0.9
Mexico	79.2	0.8	5.5	11.1	0.2	0.8	0.2	1.1	0.1	1.0
Montserrat	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Nicaragua	39.8	1.3	50.4	5.2	0.1	0.1	0.7	0.7	0.1	1.5
Panama	75.6	1.6	16.8	3.7	0.0	1.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.7
Paraguay	67.6	0.3	3.8	22.4	0.6	1.4	1.4	1.7	0.5	0.5
Peru	24.5	0.9	23.9	2.5	0.1	0.1	1.3	0.2	0.0	46.4

Table A7. Continued

Countries and territories	Suffocation	Poisoning drugs	Poisoning chemicals	Firearm	Fire	Jumping	Drowning	Cutting	Blunt force	Other
Puerto Rico	72.5	4.1	1.7	14.4	1.7	2.6	0.8	0.8	0.7	0.9
Saint Kitts and Nevis	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Saint Lucia	38.1	0.0	56.4	1.9	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	3.6
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	33.9	5.5	60.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Suriname	25.2	1.6	65.8	3.4	0.4	1.9	0.2	0.4	0.6	0.4
Trinidad and Tobago	33.5	0.8	62.5	1.3	0.8	0.0	0.6	0.5	0.0	0.0
Turks and Caicos Islands	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
United States of America	25.5	8.1	3.0	56.0	0.4	3.2	0.8	1.9	0.6	0.5
Uruguay	64.3	1.9	1.1	24.8	0.6	2.0	2.7	0.9	0.3	1.4
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	70.8	1.2	15.6	8.5	0.6	1.5	0.4	0.9	0.2	0.4
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	58.8	0.0	0.0	23.5	0.0	11.8	5.9	0.0	0.0	0.0

Table A8. Method of suicide as percentage of total, females, countries and territories in the Region of the Americas, 2010–2014

Countries and territories	Suffocation	Poisoning drugs	Poisoning chemicals	Firearm	Fire	Jumping	Drowning	Cutting	Blunt force	Other
Anguilla	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Antigua and Barbuda	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Argentina	72.6	3.5	2.3	10.0	2.7	2.0	2.0	1.0	0.3	3.6
Aruba	37.5	25.0	25.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	12.5	0.0	0.0
Bahamas	86.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	13.7	0.0
Barbados	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Belize	58.6	3.1	22.3	9.6	0.9	2.2	1.9	1.4	0.0	0.0
Bermuda	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Brazil	48.3	11.3	15.1	4.6	5.3	7.0	2.1	1.2	1.5	3.5
Canada	41.4	36.8	4.0	2.0	0.7	7.9	3.7	1.8	1.2	0.3
Cayman Islands	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Chile	78.3	7.3	3.0	2.6	0.8	4.1	1.3	0.9	0.8	0.8
Colombia	40.3	5.1	37.2	6.1	0.7	6.3	1.1	1.7	0.4	1.2
Costa Rica	48.6	15.9	22.8	7.2	0.9	3.2	0.0	0.9	0.0	0.4
Cuba	41.4	16.0	6.9	0.4	26.5	5.6	1.2	1.4	0.4	0.3
Dominica	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Dominican Republic	55.9	2.4	24.4	4.2	0.6	1.6	1.4	0.9	0.0	8.7
Ecuador	47.6	2.3	45.9	1.5	0.2	0.5	0.2	0.3	0.1	1.4
El Salvador	21.6	0.3	76.9	0.8	0.0	0.0	0.2	0.2	0.0	0.0
French Guiana	61.5	3.8	15.4	7.7	0.0	0.0	3.8	0.0	0.0	7.7
Grenada	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Guadeloupe	43.0	25.4	10.0	0.0	2.2	14.9	4.4	0.0	0.0	0.0
Guatemala	23.0	4.8	65.3	1.9	0.2	0.0	0.5	0.2	0.0	4.1
Guyana	12.4	3.0	82.7	0.0	1.0	0.0	0.5	0.4	0.0	0.0
Jamaica	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Martinique	54.8	16.1	9.7	0.0	3.2	12.9	3.2	0.0	0.0	0.0
Mexico	70.6	5.2	16.0	3.9	0.2	1.3	0.4	0.8	0.1	1.5
Montserrat	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Nicaragua	17.1	4.9	75.5	1.0	0.0	0.0	0.3	0.2	0.3	0.7
Panama	61.3	2.1	32.4	0.0	0.0	2.1	0.0	2.1	0.0	0.0
Paraguay	67.5	3.4	8.7	13.9	0.0	1.1	2.8	0.5	0.8	1.2
Peru	19.5	1.1	27.5	0.5	0.0	0.3	1.1	0.1	0.0	49.8
Puerto Rico	68.5	11.0	1.0	5.5	2.0	5.5	1.0	1.0	1.5	3.0

Table A8. Continued

Countries and territories	Suffocation	Poisoning drugs	Poisoning chemicals	Firearm	Fire	Jumping	Drowning	Cutting	Blunt force	Other
Saint Kitts and Nevis	57.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	42.9
Saint Lucia	48.4	0.0	51.6	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	100	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Suriname	16.9	0.5	78.5	0.5	0.6	1.1	0.0	0.0	1.2	0.5
Trinidad and Tobago	26.5	0.8	65.8	0.0	2.9	1.8	2.2	0.0	0.0	0.0
Turks and Caicos Islands	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
United States of America	24.0	32.6	3.2	31.2	0.5	4.0	1.6	1.5	0.8	0.6
Uruguay	48.7	8.3	2.1	20.5	1.4	5.1	7.5	0.8	0.2	5.5
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	58.5	4.6	28.1	3.4	1.2	2.3	1.0	0.6	0.0	0.4
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	66.7	0.0	0.0	22.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	11.1	0.0	0.0

Table A9.Non-standardized suicide rates per 100,000 population, by five-year groups, countries and territoriesin the Region of the Americas, 2000–2014

Countries and to mittage	2	2010-201	4	2	2005-200	9	2000-2004			
Countries and territories	т	F	М	т	F	Μ	т	F	М	
Anguilla	1.41	0.00	2.93	0.00	0.00	0.00	1.82	0.00	3.69	
Antigua and Barbuda	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.27	0.00	0.56	3.00	0.00	6.36	
Argentina	9.52	3.61	15.74	9.68	3.75	15.92	10.72	4.30	17.48	
Aruba	5.47	3.16	8.03	7.74	3.62	12.32	7.31	2.17	12.96	
Bahamas	1.66	0.85	2.52	1.21	0.36	2.10	0.98	0.26	1.75	
Barbados	0.30	0.00	0.62	1.20	0.10	2.41	1.00	0.24	1.83	
Belize	6.96	2.44	11.52	5.61	1.67	9.53	8.08	3.34	12.76	
Bermuda	1.84	0.59	3.18	2.55	0.62	4.62	2.33	1.29	3.46	
Brazil	6.24	2.65	9.97	6.07	2.50	9.76	5.78	2.40	9.27	
Canada	12.93	6.57	19.41	12.59	6.11	19.21	13.01	5.95	20.24	
Cayman Islands	0.81	0.00	1.67	1.38	0.00	2.82	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Chile	12.31	4.43	20.38	12.92	4.69	21.36	11.65	3.40	20.12	
Colombia	7.92	2.92	13.10	7.85	3.24	12.61	8.36	3.90	12.95	
Costa Rica	8.66	2.56	14.76	8.69	2.58	14.80	8.73	2.51	14.93	
Cuba	14.55	5.94	23.15	13.59	6.01	21.16	12.42	6.53	18.29	
Curaçao		•••		2.86	2.04	3.82	6.14	2.16	10.69	
Dominica	4.29	0.60	7.93	2.85	0.00	5.65	3.46	2.46	4.46	
Dominican Republic	5.51	2.03	9.04	6.75	2.55	10.98	6.84	2.60	11.09	
Ecuador	8.73	4.73	12.74	9.81	5.59	14.03	7.37	4.70	10.04	
El Salvador	10.73	4.44	17.87	10.37	4.70	16.73	12.23	6.32	18.73	
French Guiana	9.00	4.80	13.22	11.08	6.85	15.40	10.07	2.60	17.35	
Grenada	0.63	0.00	1.26	2.20	0.85	3.57	1.44	0.00	2.92	
Guadeloupe	8.87	3.97	14.59	10.26	4.85	16.23	9.57	3.58	16.01	
Guatemala	3.25	1.77	4.79	4.64	2.32	7.09				
Guyana	36.85	17.33	56.33	31.33	17.58	45.13	28.12	14.03	42.35	
Jamaica	0.75	0.11	1.39	0.71	0.27	1.16	0.18	0.06	0.31	
Martinique	7.98	3.09	13.81	9.25	2.83	16.74	9.74	3.30	17.14	
Mexico	5.52	2.06	9.03	4.79	1.69	7.95	4.44	1.47	7.45	
Montserrat	4.10	0.00	8.21	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Nicaragua	11.43	5.30	17.80	13.78	6.74	21.07	17.55	9.57	25.79	
Panama	5.04	1.33	8.73	7.21	1.95	12.44	7.52	2.29	12.68	
Paraguay	8.43	5.95	10.84	7.78	5.63	9.87	7.32	5.57	9.02	
Peru	2.93	1.85	4.01	2.23	1.44	3.02	2.28	1.31	3.27	

Table A9. Continued

Countries and territories	2	2010-201	4	2	2005-200	9	2000-2004			
Countries and territories	Т	F	Μ	т	F	М	т	F	М	
Puerto Rico	7.23	2.21	12.69	8.35	2.00	15.28	7.90	1.58	14.80	
Saint Kitts and Nevis	3.00	3.67	2.31	2.29	1.10	3.51	2.26	0.00	4.58	
Saint Lucia	7.18	1.68	12.92	2.59	0.00	5.31	8.32	4.22	12.62	
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	4.42	1.61	7.18	6.59	1.22	11.86	6.21	0.82	11.51	
Suriname	35.09	19.08	51.04	37.17	17.23	56.96	28.81	13.63	43.86	
Trinidad and Tobago	9.28	3.60	15.11	14.23	5.05	23.62	14.76	6.74	22.92	
Turks and Caicos Islands	0.90	0.00	1.73	1.03	0.00	1.98	2.42	0.00	4.68	
United States of America	14.21	6.20	22.44	12.80	5.39	20.44	12.01	4.78	19.48	
Uruguay	14.82	6.26	24.09	17.43	7.58	28.10	18.35	7.30	30.27	
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	3.50	1.13	5.90	5.59	1.91	9.29	8.51	2.74	14.29	
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	3.03	2.08	3.94	
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	5.30	3.50	7.27	8.03	2.70	13.81	5.36	1.53	9.50	

Table A10.Age-standardized suicide rates per 100,000 population, by five-year groups, countries and territoriesin the Region of the Americas, 2000–2014

Countries and to mitter its	2	2010-201	4	2	2005-200	9	2000-2004			
Countries and territories	т	F	Μ	т	F	Μ	Т	F	М	
Anguilla	1.41	0.00	2.93	0.00	0.00	0.00	1.82	0.00	3.69	
Antigua and Barbuda	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.27	0.00	0.56	3.00	0.00	6.36	
Argentina	9.52	3.61	15.74	9.68	3.75	15.92	10.72	4.30	17.48	
Aruba	5.47	3.16	8.03	7.74	3.62	12.32	9.14	2.71	16.20	
Bahamas	1.66	0.85	2.52	1.51	0.45	2.63	1.64	0.43	2.92	
Barbados	0.37	0.00	0.78	1.20	0.10	2.41	1.00	0.24	1.83	
Belize	6.96	2.44	11.52	5.61	1.67	9.53	8.08	3.34	12.76	
Bermuda	1.84	0.59	3.18	2.55	0.62	4.62	2.33	1.29	3.46	
Brazil	6.24	2.65	9.97	6.07	2.50	9.76	5.78	2.40	9.27	
Canada	12.93	6.57	19.41	12.59	6.11	19.21	13.01	5.95	20.24	
Cayman Islands	2.03	0.00	4.17	1.38	0.00	2.82	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Chile	12.31	4.43	20.38	12.92	4.69	21.36	11.65	3.40	20.12	
Colombia	7.92	2.92	13.10	7.85	3.24	12.61	8.36	3.90	12.95	
Costa Rica	8.66	2.56	14.76	8.69	2.58	14.80	8.73	2.51	14.93	
Cuba	14.55	5.94	23.15	13.59	6.01	21.16	15.53	8.16	22.87	
Curaçao				4.77	3.40	6.37	7.68	2.71	13.36	
Dominica	4.29	0.60	7.93	2.85	0.00	5.65	4.33	3.07	5.58	
Dominican Republic	6.89	2.53	11.30	6.75	2.55	10.98	6.84	2.60	11.09	
Ecuador	8.73	4.73	12.74	9.81	5.59	14.03	7.37	4.70	10.04	
El Salvador	10.73	4.44	17.87	10.37	4.70	16.73	12.23	6.32	18.73	
French Guiana	9.00	4.80	13.22	11.08	6.85	15.40	12.59	3.25	21.69	
Grenada	0.63	0.00	1.26	2.20	0.85	3.57	2.40	0.00	4.86	
Guadeloupe	8.87	3.97	14.59	10.26	4.85	16.23	9.57	3.58	16.01	
Guatemala	3.25	1.77	4.79	4.64	2.32	7.09				
Guyana	36.85	17.33	56.33	31.33	17.58	45.13	28.12	14.03	42.35	
Jamaica	0.75	0.11	1.39	1.19	0.45	1.94	0.18	0.06	0.31	
Martinique	7.98	3.09	13.81	9.25	2.83	16.74	9.74	3.30	17.14	
Mexico	5.52	2.06	9.03	4.79	1.69	7.95	4.44	1.47	7.45	
Montserrat	4.10	0.00	8.21	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Nicaragua	11.43	5.30	17.80	13.78	6.74	21.07	17.55	9.57	25.79	
Panama	5.04	1.33	8.73	7.21	1.95	12.44	7.52	2.29	12.68	

Table A10. Continued

Countries and torritories	2	2010-201	4	2	2005-200	9	2000-2004			
Countries and territories	т	F	Μ	т	F	Μ	т	F	М	
Paraguay	8.43	5.95	10.84	7.78	5.63	9.87	7.32	5.57	9.02	
Peru	2.93	1.85	4.01	2.23	1.44	3.02	2.28	1.31	3.27	
Puerto Rico	7.23	2.21	12.69	8.35	2.00	15.28	7.90	1.58	14.80	
Saint Kitts and Nevis	3.00	3.67	2.31	2.29	1.10	3.51	2.26	0.00	4.58	
Saint Lucia	7.18	1.68	12.92	3.24	0.00	6.64	8.32	4.22	12.62	
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	4.42	1.61	7.18	6.59	1.22	11.86	6.21	0.82	11.51	
Suriname	35.09	19.08	51.04	37.17	17.23	56.96	28.81	13.63	43.86	
Trinidad and Tobago	15.47	6.00	25.18	14.23	5.05	23.62	14.76	6.74	22.92	
Turks and Caicos Islands	1.49	0.00	2.88	1.03	0.00	1.98	2.42	0.00	4.68	
United States of America	14.21	6.20	22.44	12.80	5.39	20.44	12.01	4.78	19.48	
Uruguay	18.52	7.82	30.11	17.43	7.58	28.10	18.35	7.30	30.27	
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	4.38	1.41	7.38	5.59	1.91	9.29	8.51	2.74	14.29	
Virgin Islands (U.K.)	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	3.03	2.08	3.94	
Virgin Islands (U.S.)	8.83	5.83	12.12	8.03	2.70	13.81	5.36	1.53	9.50	

Table A11.Percentage contribution of suicide among external causes of death, by sex, countries and territories inthe Region of the Americas, 2010–2014

Countries and territories	Both sexes	Female	Male
Anguilla	0.0	0.0	0.0
Antigua and Barbuda	0.0	0.0	0.0
Argentina	19.0	15.2	20.3
Aruba	11.1	20.0	11.1
Bahamas	2.5	2.4	2.0
Barbados	0.9	0.0	1.4
Belize	8.2	10.9	7.8
Bermuda	4.4	0.0	4.8
Brazil	7.4	9.3	7.0
Canada	25.9	17.7	30.8
Cayman Islands	5.0	0.0	5.9
Chile	24.5	19.0	26.2
Colombia	7.6	10.8	7.1
Costa Rica	14.9	10.2	16.2
Cuba	21.5	11.3	28.0
Dominica	7.9	0.0	9.7
Dominican Republic	7.3	7.9	7.2
Ecuador	10.9	15.7	9.8
El Salvador	9.0	13.8	8.2
French Guiana	18.5	21.7	17.5
Grenada	2.4	0.0	3.1
Guadeloupe	15.8	13.6	16.6
Guatemala	3.6	6.1	3.1
Guyana	31.7	35.5	30.8
Jamaica	1.6	0.4	1.9
Martinique	17.5	13.3	19.0
Mexico	9.0	9.7	8.8
Montserrat	0.0	0.0	0.0
Nicaragua	17.7	23.3	16.5
Panama	8.4	8.7	8.4
Paraguay	11.6	17.0	9.9
Peru	5.0	6.4	4.5
Puerto Rico	11.3	10.4	11.5
Saint Kitts and Nevis	2.9	25.0	0.0

Table A11. Continued

		Male
10.2	4.4	10.5
7.1	11.1	8.3
40.1	43.0	39.1
15.6	18.8	15.0
0.0	0.0	0.0
21.9	14.9	25.4
25.5	19.1	28.2
3.7	5.3	3.5
0.0	0.0	0.0
10.3	20.0	8.3
	0.0 21.9 25.5 3.7 0.0	0.0 0.0 21.9 14.9 25.5 19.1 3.7 5.3

Table A12. Annual average number of suicides in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014

Region and subregions	Both sexes	Female	Male
Region of the Americas	82,179	17,844	64,335
North America	45,865	10,344	35,780
Latin America and the Caribbean	36,313	7,500	28,555
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	10,764	2,044	8,362
South America	24,872	5,281	19,591
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	776	175	601

 Table A13.
 Female-males ratio of suicide methods used, age-unadjusted, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, 2010–2014

Region and subregions	Suffocation	Poisoning drugs	Poisoning chemicals	Firearm	Fire	Jumping	Drowning	Cutting	Blunt force	Other
Region of the Americas	1.2	0.2	0.6	1.9	0.4	0.7	0.5	1.3	0.9	0.7
North America	1.1	0.3	1.0	1.9	0.8	0.8	0.5	1.3	0.9	0.8
Latin America and the Caribbean	1.3	0.2	0.5	2.6	0.1	0.5	0.5	1.4	0.9	0.6
Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico	1.3	0.2	0.5	3.3	0.2	0.6	0.7	1.4	2.0	0.6
South America	1.3	0.3	0.5	2.4	0.2	0.5	0.5	1.4	0.9	0.6
Non-Hispanic Caribbean	1.5	0.5	0.8	7.8	0.6	0.7	0.2	1.7	0.5	1.8

Table A14. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, both sexes, 2010-2014

Methods of suicide	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+			
	Region of the Americas									
Suffocation	73.3	62.1	55.1	48.9	36.4	32.0	29.0			
Poisoning drugs	1.6	3.0	4.1	8.4	13.9	11.3	6.5			
Poisoning chemicals	8.9	11.0	8.9	7.9	7.0	6.2	4.7			
Firearm	12.2	17.7	23.9	25.9	33.2	41.3	51.2			
Fire	0.1	0.4	0.5	0.8	0.9	1.0	0.8			
Jumping	0.8	2.5	3.5	3.4	3.3	2.9	2.5			
Drowning	1.8	0.6	0.8	0.9	1.1	1.3	1.4			
Cutting	0.1	0.4	0.8	1.5	2.2	2.2	1.8			
Blunt force	1.0	0.6	0.7	0.8	0.7	0.6	0.5			
Other	0.3	1.8	1.6	1.5	1.3	1.2	1.4			
		North America								
Suffocation	83.9	49.3	38.3	34.0	24.4	16.6	11.8			
Poisoning drugs	0.0	4.6	6.8	13.4	18.7	15.8	8.9			
Poisoning chemicals	0.0	1.1	2.0	3.1	4.2	3.6	2.8			
Firearm	12.9	37.6	43.6	40.8	43.9	55.9	69.9			
Fire	0.0	0.2	0.4	0.4	0.6	0.6	0.3			
Jumping	3.2	4.6	5.5	4.3	3.4	2.9	2.4			
Drowning	0.0	0.8	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.3	1.3			
Cutting	0.0	0.4	0.8	1.7	2.5	2.3	1.7			
Blunt force	0.0	1.1	1.1	0.8	0.7	0.6	0.4			
Other	0.0	0.4	0.4	0.5	0.6	0.5	0.4			
			Latin Ame	rica and the	Caribbean					
Suffocation	69.6	68.7	67.5	64.5	61.6	61.6	61.0			
Poisoning drugs	2.1	2.1	2.1	3.3	3.8	2.7	2.1			
Poisoning chemicals	12.0	16.1	14.1	13.0	12.8	11.3	8.2			
Firearm	12.0	7.3	9.4	10.4	10.8	13.1	16.7			
Fire	0.1	0.4	0.6	1.3	1.7	1.9	1.9			
Jumping	0.0	1.4	2.0	2.4	3.0	3.1	2.8			
Drowning	2.4	0.5	0.6	0.8	1.0	1.2	1.6			
Cutting	0.1	0.4	0.8	1.2	1.7	1.9	2.1			
Blunt force	1.3	0.4	0.5	0.7	0.7	0.7	0.5			
Other	0.3	2.6	2.5	2.5	2.8	2.5	3.1			

Table A14. Continued

Poisoning drugs 0.0 1.9 1.9 2.0 3.1 2.9 3.0 Poisoning chemicals 16.8 18.4 18.2 16.0 13.3 12.9 9.2 Firearm 5.6 5.1 6.2 8.2 9.9 10.9 11.7 Fire 0.8 0.2 0.3 0.9 2.2 2.7 2.8 Jumping 0.0 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.9 1.9 1.6 Drowning 6.0 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7	Methods of suicide	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+			
Poisoning drugs 0.0 1.9 1.9 2.0 3.1 2.9 3.0 Poisoning chemicals 16.8 18.4 18.2 16.0 13.3 12.9 9.2 Firearm 5.6 5.1 6.2 8.2 9.9 10.9 11.7 Fire 0.8 0.2 0.3 0.9 2.2 2.7 2.8 Jumping 0.0 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.9 1.9 1.6 Drowning 6.0 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7		Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico									
Poisoning chemicals 16.8 18.4 18.2 16.0 13.3 12.9 9.2 Firearm 5.6 5.1 6.2 8.2 9.9 10.9 11.7 Fire 0.8 0.2 0.3 0.9 2.2 2.7 2.8 Jumping 0.0 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.9 1.9 1.6 Drowning 6.0 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blun force 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 Other 1.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 <	Suffocation	68.4	72.3	70.4	68.8	66.2	65.1	68.3			
Firearm 5.6 5.1 6.2 8.2 9.9 10.9 11.7 Fire 0.8 0.2 0.3 0.9 2.2 2.7 2.8 Jumping 0.0 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.9 1.9 1.6 Drowning 6.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.7 Cutting 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 Other 1.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 Suffocation 68.8 67.7 67.1 63.8 60.9 58.3 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning drugs 1.7 0.7 1.10 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Fire 0.0 0.5 0.7 1.4	Poisoning drugs	0.0	1.9	1.9	2.0	3.1	2.9	3.0			
Fire 0.8 0.2 0.3 0.9 2.2 2.7 2.8 Jumping 0.0 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.9 1.9 1.6 Drowning 6.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.7 Cutting 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 Other 1.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 Suffocation 68.8 67.7 67.1 63.8 60.9 58.3 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Fire 0.0 0.5 0.7 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.5 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0	Poisoning chemicals	16.8	18.4	18.2	16.0	13.3	12.9	9.2			
Jumping 0.0 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.9 1.9 1.6 Drowning 6.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.7 Cutting 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 Other 1.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 South America Suffocation 68.8 67.7 67.1 63.8 60.9 58.3 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Drowning 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 0	Firearm	5.6	5.1	6.2	8.2	9.9	10.9	11.7			
Drowning 6.0 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.7 Cutting 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 Other 1.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 South America South America South America Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Cutting 0.1 0.5 0.9	Fire	0.8	0.2	0.3	0.9	2.2	2.7	2.8			
Cutting 0.3 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.6 1.7 1.7 Blunt force 0.3 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 Other 1.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 Suffocation 68.8 67.7 67.1 63.8 60.9 58.3 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Jumping 0.0 1.5 0.7 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.5 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 2.3 Blunt force 0.0 3.4 3.2 <t< td=""><td>Jumping</td><td>0.0</td><td>0.5</td><td>0.8</td><td>1.1</td><td>1.9</td><td>1.9</td><td>1.6</td></t<>	Jumping	0.0	0.5	0.8	1.1	1.9	1.9	1.6			
Blunt force 0.3 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 Other 1.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 Suffocation 68.8 67.7 67.1 63.8 60.9 58.3 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Jumping 0.0 1.5 0.7 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.5 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Cutting 0.1 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.8 2.0 2.3 Blunt force 0.0 3.4 3.2 <t< td=""><td>Drowning</td><td>6.0</td><td>0.3</td><td>0.3</td><td>0.4</td><td>0.5</td><td>0.7</td><td>0.7</td></t<>	Drowning	6.0	0.3	0.3	0.4	0.5	0.7	0.7			
Other 1.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.8 South America Suffocation 68.8 67.7 67.1 63.8 60.9 58.3 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Cutting 0.1 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Other 0.0 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.4 3.1 4.2 Drowning 0.1 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.0 3.4	Cutting	0.3	0.2	0.6	1.0	1.6	1.7	1.7			
Suffocation 68.8 67.7 67.1 63.8 60.8 60.9 58.3 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Jumping 0.0 0.5 0.7 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.5 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Cutting 0.1 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 2.3 Blunt force 1.6 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.7 Other 0.0 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.4 3.1 4.2 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.9	Blunt force	0.3	0.0	0.1	0.2	0.1	0.2	0.2			
Suffocation 68.8 67.7 67.1 63.8 60.8 60.9 58.3 Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Jumping 0.0 0.5 0.7 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.5 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Cutting 0.1 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.8 2.0 2.3 Blunt force 0.0 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.4 3.1 4.2 Suffocation 100 40.8 34.0 31.9 35.7 42.4 38.2 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.	Other	1.9	1.1	1.3	1.4	1.3	1.0	0.8			
Poisoning drugs 2.7 2.3 2.2 3.8 4.0 2.6 1.7 Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Fire 0.0 0.5 0.7 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.5 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 2.3 Blunt force 1.6 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.7 Other 0.0 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.4 3.1 4.2 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.9 0.9 2.1 3.1 2.2 2.3 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.9 0.9 2.1 3.1 2.2 2.3 Poisoning chemicals 0.0 5.0			South America								
Poisoning chemicals 11.3 13.8 10.9 10.2 11.1 9.7 6.8 Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Fire 0.0 0.5 0.7 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.5 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Cutting 0.1 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Cutting 0.1 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.8 2.0 2.3 Blunt force 1.6 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.7 Other 0.0 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.4 3.1 4.2 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.9 0.9 2.1 3.1 2.2 2.3 Poisoning chemicals 0.0 0.7 2.5 2.7	Suffocation	68.8	67.7	67.1	63.8	60.8	60.9	58.3			
Firearm 13.9 8.7 11.0 11.6 11.4 14.2 19.3 Fire 0.0 0.5 0.7 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.5 Jumping 0.0 1.9 2.6 3.0 3.4 3.6 3.2 Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Cutting 0.1 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.8 2.0 2.3 Blunt force 1.6 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.7 Other 0.0 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.4 3.1 4.2 Non-Hispanic Caribbean Suffocation 100 40.8 34.0 31.9 35.7 42.4 38.2 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.9 0.9 2.1 3.1 2.2 2.3 Poisoning chemicals 0.0 0.7 2.5 2.7 2.1 3.6 3.9	Poisoning drugs	2.7	2.3	2.2	3.8	4.0	2.6	1.7			
Fire0.00.50.71.41.61.51.5Jumping0.01.92.63.03.43.63.2Drowning1.70.70.70.91.31.42.0Cutting0.10.50.91.31.82.02.3Blunt force1.60.50.70.91.00.90.7Other0.03.43.23.13.43.14.2Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10040.834.031.935.742.438.2Poisoning drugs0.00.90.92.13.12.22.3Poisoning chemicals0.055.060.359.055.943.746.8Fire0.00.80.70.50.42.81.3Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Drowning0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Blunt force0.00.00.60.60.41.3	Poisoning chemicals	11.3	13.8	10.9	10.2	11.1	9.7	6.8			
Jumping0.01.92.63.03.43.63.2Drowning1.70.70.70.91.31.42.0Cutting0.10.50.91.31.82.02.3Blunt force1.60.50.70.91.00.90.7Other0.03.43.23.13.43.14.2Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10040.834.031.935.742.438.2Poisoning drugs0.00.90.92.13.12.22.3Poisoning chemicals0.055.060.359.055.943.746.8Fire0.00.80.70.50.42.81.3Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Drowning0.00.00.50.60.11.80.8Blunt force0.00.40.00.00.40.80.4	Firearm	13.9	8.7	11.0	11.6	11.4	14.2	19.3			
Drowning 1.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.3 1.4 2.0 Cutting 0.1 0.5 0.9 1.3 1.8 2.0 2.3 Blunt force 1.6 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.7 Other 0.0 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.4 3.1 4.2 Non-Hispanic Caribbean Suffocation 100 40.8 34.0 31.9 35.7 42.4 38.2 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 2.1 3.1 2.2 2.3 Poisoning chemicals 0.0 55.0 60.3 59.0 55.9 43.7 46.8 Firearm 0.0 0.7 2.5 2.7 2.1 3.6 3.9 Fire 0.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 2.8 1.3 Jumping 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.6 0.1 1.8 0.8	Fire	0.0	0.5	0.7	1.4	1.6	1.5	1.5			
Cutting0.10.50.91.31.82.02.3Blunt force1.60.50.70.91.00.90.7Other0.03.43.23.13.43.14.2Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10040.834.031.935.742.438.2Poisoning drugs0.00.90.92.13.12.22.3Poisoning chemicals0.055.060.359.055.943.746.8Firearm0.00.72.52.72.13.63.9Fire0.00.80.70.50.42.81.3Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Drowning0.00.00.50.60.11.80.8Cutting0.00.00.00.00.40.80.4	Jumping	0.0	1.9	2.6	3.0	3.4	3.6	3.2			
Blunt force 1.6 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.7 Other 0.0 3.4 3.2 3.1 3.4 3.1 4.2 Non-Hispanic Caribbean Suffocation 100 40.8 34.0 31.9 35.7 42.4 38.2 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.9 0.9 2.1 3.1 2.2 2.3 Poisoning chemicals 0.0 0.9 0.9 2.1 3.1 2.2 2.3 Poisoning chemicals 0.0 0.7 2.5 2.7 2.1 3.6 3.9 Firearm 0.0 0.7 2.5 2.7 2.1 3.6 3.9 Jumping 0.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 2.8 1.3 Jumping 0.0 0.9 0.8 1.4 1.2 1.6 3.8 Drowning 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.4 1.3 0.8 0.4	Drowning	1.7	0.7	0.7	0.9	1.3	1.4	2.0			
Other0.03.43.23.13.43.14.2Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10040.834.031.935.742.438.2Poisoning drugs0.00.90.92.13.12.22.3Poisoning chemicals0.055.060.359.055.943.746.8Firearm0.00.72.52.72.13.63.9Fire0.00.80.70.50.42.81.3Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Cutting0.00.00.50.60.11.80.8Blunt force0.00.40.00.00.40.80.4	Cutting	0.1	0.5	0.9	1.3	1.8	2.0	2.3			
Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10040.834.031.935.742.438.2Poisoning drugs0.00.90.92.13.12.22.3Poisoning chemicals0.055.060.359.055.943.746.8Firearm0.00.72.52.72.13.63.9Fire0.00.80.70.50.42.81.3Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Drowning0.00.00.50.60.11.80.8Cutting0.00.00.00.00.40.80.4	Blunt force	1.6	0.5	0.7	0.9	1.0	0.9	0.7			
Suffocation10040.834.031.935.742.438.2Poisoning drugs0.00.90.92.13.12.22.3Poisoning chemicals0.055.060.359.055.943.746.8Firearm0.00.72.52.72.13.63.9Fire0.00.80.70.50.42.81.3Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Drowning0.00.00.50.60.11.80.8Cutting0.00.00.00.00.40.80.4	Other	0.0	3.4	3.2	3.1	3.4	3.1	4.2			
Poisoning drugs0.00.90.92.13.12.22.3Poisoning chemicals0.055.060.359.055.943.746.8Firearm0.00.72.52.72.13.63.9Fire0.00.80.70.50.42.81.3Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Drowning0.00.00.50.60.11.80.8Cutting0.00.00.00.00.40.80.4				Non-H	lispanic Car	ibbean					
Poisoning chemicals0.055.060.359.055.943.746.8Firearm0.00.72.52.72.13.63.9Fire0.00.80.70.50.42.81.3Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Drowning0.00.00.50.60.11.80.8Cutting0.00.00.00.60.60.41.3Blunt force0.00.40.00.00.40.80.4	Suffocation	100	40.8	34.0	31.9	35.7	42.4	38.2			
Firearm 0.0 0.7 2.5 2.7 2.1 3.6 3.9 Fire 0.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.4 2.8 1.3 Jumping 0.0 0.9 0.8 1.4 1.2 1.6 3.8 Drowning 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.6 0.1 1.8 0.8 Cutting 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.4 1.3 Blunt force 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.8 0.4	Poisoning drugs	0.0	0.9	0.9	2.1	3.1	2.2	2.3			
Fire0.00.80.70.50.42.81.3Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Drowning0.00.00.50.60.11.80.8Cutting0.00.00.00.60.60.41.3Blunt force0.00.40.00.00.40.80.4	Poisoning chemicals	0.0	55.0	60.3	59.0	55.9	43.7	46.8			
Jumping0.00.90.81.41.21.63.8Drowning0.00.00.50.60.11.80.8Cutting0.00.00.00.60.60.41.3Blunt force0.00.40.00.00.40.80.4	Firearm	0.0	0.7	2.5	2.7	2.1	3.6	3.9			
Drowning 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.6 0.1 1.8 0.8 Cutting 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.4 1.3 Blunt force 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.8 0.4	Fire	0.0	0.8	0.7	0.5	0.4	2.8	1.3			
Cutting 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.4 1.3 Blunt force 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.8 0.4	Jumping	0.0	0.9	0.8	1.4	1.2	1.6	3.8			
Blunt force 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.4	Drowning	0.0	0.0	0.5	0.6	0.1	1.8	0.8			
	Cutting	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.6	0.6	0.4	1.3			
Other 0.0 0.5 0.4 1.2 0.5 0.7 1.3	Blunt force	0.0	0.4	0.0	0.0	0.4	0.8	0.4			
	Other	0.0	0.5	0.4	1.2	0.5	0.7	1.3			

Table A15. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, males, 2010–2014

Methods of suicide	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+			
	Region of the Americas									
Suffocation	73.6	63.9	56.0	51.4	39.2	33.8	29.0			
Poisoning drugs	0.2	1.8	2.9	5.2	8.4	6.2	3.5			
Poisoning chemicals	6.9	6.3	7.3	7.1	7.0	6.0	4.3			
Firearm	15.5	22.2	26.3	28.0	36.9	46.0	56.3			
Fire	0.1	0.3	0.4	0.6	0.6	0.7	0.5			
Jumping	1.0	2.4	3.5	3.1	2.9	2.6	1.9			
Drowning	1.2	0.6	0.7	0.8	0.8	0.9	1.1			
Cutting	0.1	0.4	0.8	1.6	2.4	2.2	1.8			
Blunt force	1.3	0.6	0.7	0.8	0.6	0.6	0.4			
Other	0.0	1.5	1.4	1.4	1.2	1.1	1.2			
		North America								
Suffocation	80.8	44.8	36.7	35.1	26.2	17.1	10.9			
Poisoning drugs	0.0	2.9	4.8	8.4	11.6	8.8	4.7			
Poisoning chemicals	0.0	1.2	2.0	3.2	4.4	3.5	2.5			
Firearm	15.4	43.9	47.3	44.6	49.3	63.0	76.2			
Fire	0.0	0.3	0.4	0.4	0.5	0.5	0.3			
Jumping	3.8	4.4	5.4	4.2	3.2	2.7	1.9			
Drowning	0.0	0.7	1.0	1.0	0.9	0.9	1.0			
Cutting	0.0	0.4	0.9	1.8	2.7	2.4	1.6			
Blunt force	0.0	1.0	1.0	0.8	0.6	0.6	0.4			
Other	0.0	0.4	0.4	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.4			
			Latin Ame	rica and the	Caribbean					
Suffocation	71.0	71.0	75.4	70.4	67.5	64.7	64.3			
Poisoning drugs	0.3	0.3	1.1	1.4	2.1	2.1	1.6			
Poisoning chemicals	9.5	9.5	9.4	11.4	11.1	12.1	10.5			
Firearm	15.6	15.6	9.1	10.5	11.6	12.4	14.9			
Fire	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.4	0.8	0.8	1.0			
Jumping	0.0	0.0	1.2	2.0	2.1	2.2	2.3			
Drowning	1.7	1.7	0.6	0.5	0.6	0.7	0.8			
Cutting	0.1	0.1	0.5	0.8	1.4	1.8	1.8			
Blunt force	1.7	1.7	0.3	0.4	0.7	0.6	0.6			
Other	0.1	0.1	2.2	2.1	2.2	2.5	2.2			

Table A15. Continued

Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.7 1.3 1.1 1.6 1.3 1.5 Poisoning chemicals 14.7 10.9 15.3 13.7 12.2 12.2 8.5 Firearm 8.0 6.1 7.1 9.2 11.3 12.6 13.3 Fire 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.7 0.8 0.9 Jumping 0.0 0.4 0.9 1.0 1.5 1.3 Drowning 0.0 0.4 0.2 0.6 1.1 1.6 1.5 1.6 Blunt force 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 Other 0.4 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.8 Suffocation 68.7 73.6 69.9 66.8 63.9 63.2 59.6 Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 Poisoning drugs 0.3	Methods of suicide	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+			
Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.7 1.3 1.1 1.6 1.3 1.5 Poisoning chemicals 14.7 10.9 15.3 13.7 12.2 12.2 8.5 Firearm 8.0 6.1 7.1 9.2 11.3 12.6 13.3 Fire 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.7 0.8 0.9 Jumping 0.0 0.4 0.9 1.0 1.5 1.5 1.3 Drowning 0.0 0.4 0.2 0.6 1.1 1.6 1.5 1.6 Blunt force 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.		Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico									
Poisoning chemicals 14.7 10.9 15.3 13.7 12.2 12.2 8.5 Firearm 8.0 6.1 7.1 9.2 11.3 12.6 13.3 Fire 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.7 0.8 0.9 Jumping 0.0 0.4 0.9 1.0 1.5 1.5 1.3 Drowning 0.0 0.4 0.2 0.6 1.1 1.6 1.5 1.6 Blunt force 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 Other 0.4 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.8 Suffocation 68.7 73.6 69.9 66.8 63.9 63.2 59.6 Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.5 2.7 2.4 Drowning 0.0 <	Suffocation	75.4	80.0	73.4	71.6	69.4	68.5	71.4			
Firearm 8.0 6.1 7.1 9.2 11.3 12.6 13.3 Fire 0.8 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.7 0.8 0.9 Jumping 0.0 0.4 0.9 1.0 1.5 1.3 Drowning 0.0 0.4 0.2 0.6 1.1 1.6 1.5 1.6 Blunt force 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 1.1 Poisoning chemicals 8.9 7.7 8.4 8.5 10.0 0.7	Poisoning drugs	0.0	0.7	1.3	1.1	1.6	1.3	1.5			
Fire0.80.10.10.40.70.80.9Jumping0.00.40.91.01.51.51.3Drowning0.00.40.30.40.30.60.5Cutting0.40.20.61.11.61.51.6Blunt force0.40.10.10.20.10.10.1Other0.41.01.11.31.20.80.8South AmericaSutfocation68.773.669.966.863.963.259.6Poisoning drugs0.31.31.52.52.31.71.1Poisoning chemicals8.97.78.48.510.59.06.3Firearm17.910.812.212.813.216.022.0Fire0.00.30.61.00.81.00.7Jumping0.01.72.52.52.72.4Drowning0.00.70.70.80.90.91.5Cutting0.00.61.01.51.91.92.1Blunt force2.10.50.60.90.80.80.7Other0.02.82.62.63.02.73.6Firearm10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.7 </td <td>Poisoning chemicals</td> <td>14.7</td> <td>10.9</td> <td>15.3</td> <td>13.7</td> <td>12.2</td> <td>12.2</td> <td>8.5</td>	Poisoning chemicals	14.7	10.9	15.3	13.7	12.2	12.2	8.5			
Jumping0.00.40.91.01.51.51.3Drowning0.00.40.30.40.30.60.5Cutting0.40.20.61.11.61.51.6Blunt force0.40.10.10.20.10.10.1Other0.41.01.11.31.20.80.8South AmericaSuffocation68.773.669.966.863.963.259.6Poisoning drugs0.31.31.52.52.31.71.1Poisoning chemicals8.97.78.48.510.59.06.3Firearm17.910.812.212.813.216.022.0Fire0.00.30.61.00.81.00.7Jumping0.01.72.52.52.72.4Drowning0.00.70.70.80.90.5Cutting0.00.61.01.51.91.92.1Blunt force2.10.50.60.90.80.80.7Other10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.00.557.657.053.442.147.7Firearm0.00.51.11.41.3<	Firearm	8.0	6.1	7.1	9.2	11.3	12.6	13.3			
Drowning 0.0 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.6 0.5 Cutting 0.4 0.2 0.6 1.1 1.6 1.5 1.6 Blunt force 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 Other 0.4 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.8 South America South America South America Suffocation 68.7 73.6 69.9 66.8 63.9 63.2 59.6 Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 Poisoning chemicals 8.9 7.7 8.4 8.5 10.5 9.0 6.3 Firearm 17.9 10.8 12.2 12.8 13.2 16.0 22.0 Fire 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.5 Cutting 0.0 0.7 0.7	Fire	0.8	0.1	0.1	0.4	0.7	0.8	0.9			
Outling 0.4 0.2 0.6 1.1 1.6 1.5 1.6 Blunt force 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 Other 0.4 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.8 South America South America Suffocation 68.7 73.6 69.9 66.8 63.9 63.2 59.6 Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 Poisoning chemicals 8.9 7.7 8.4 8.5 10.5 9.0 6.3 Firearm 17.9 10.8 12.2 12.8 13.2 16.0 22.0 Fire 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.7 2.1 Downing 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.1 1.5 Cutting 0.0 0.6 1.0 1.5 1.9 1.9	Jumping	0.0	0.4	0.9	1.0	1.5	1.5	1.3			
Blunt force 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 Other 0.4 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.8 Suffocation 68.7 73.6 69.9 66.8 63.9 63.2 59.6 Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 Poisoning chemicals 8.9 7.7 8.4 8.5 10.5 9.0 6.3 Firearm 17.9 10.8 12.2 12.8 13.2 16.0 22.0 Fire 0.0 0.3 0.6 1.0 0.8 1.0 0.7 Jumping 0.0 1.7 2.5 2.5 2.7 2.4 Drowning 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.5 Cutting 0.0 0.6 1.0 1.5 1.9 1.9 2.1 Blunt force 2.1 0.5 0.6 0.9	Drowning	0.0	0.4	0.3	0.4	0.3	0.6	0.5			
Other 0.4 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.8 South America South America Suffocation 68.7 73.6 69.9 66.8 63.9 59.6 Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 Poisoning chemicals 8.9 7.7 8.4 8.5 10.5 9.0 6.3 Firearm 17.9 10.8 12.2 12.8 13.2 16.0 22.0 Fire 0.0 0.3 0.6 1.0 0.8 1.0 0.7 Jumping 0.0 1.7 2.5 2.5 2.7 2.4 Drowning 0.0 0.6 1.0 1.5 1.9 1.9 2.1 Blunt force 2.1 0.5 0.6 0.9 0.8 0.7 3.6 Suffocation 100 52.7 37.2 34.0 38.4 45.5 38.1	Cutting	0.4	0.2	0.6	1.1	1.6	1.5	1.6			
South America Suffocation 68.7 73.6 69.9 66.8 63.9 63.2 59.6 Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 Poisoning chemicals 8.9 7.7 8.4 8.5 10.5 9.0 6.3 Firearm 17.9 10.8 12.2 12.8 13.2 16.0 22.0 Fire 0.0 0.3 0.6 1.0 0.8 1.0 0.7 Jumping 0.0 1.7 2.5 2.5 2.7 2.4 Drowning 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.5 Cutting 0.0 0.6 1.0 1.5 1.9 1.9 2.1 Blunt force 2.1 0.5 0.6 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 Suffocation 100 52.7 37.2 34.0 38.4 45.5 38.1 Poisoning chemicals </td <td>Blunt force</td> <td>0.4</td> <td>0.1</td> <td>0.1</td> <td>0.2</td> <td>0.1</td> <td>0.1</td> <td>0.1</td>	Blunt force	0.4	0.1	0.1	0.2	0.1	0.1	0.1			
Suffocation 68.7 73.6 69.9 66.8 63.9 63.2 59.6 Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 Poisoning chemicals 8.9 7.7 8.4 8.5 10.5 9.0 6.3 Firearm 17.9 10.8 12.2 12.8 13.2 16.0 22.0 Fire 0.0 0.3 0.6 1.0 0.8 1.0 0.7 Jumping 0.0 1.7 2.5 2.5 2.7 2.4 Drowning 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.5 Cutting 0.0 0.6 1.0 1.5 1.9 1.9 2.1 Blunt force 2.1 0.5 0.6 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 Other 0.0 2.8 2.6 2.6 3.0 2.7 3.6 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.5 0.0 <td< td=""><td>Other</td><td>0.4</td><td>1.0</td><td>1.1</td><td>1.3</td><td>1.2</td><td>0.8</td><td>0.8</td></td<>	Other	0.4	1.0	1.1	1.3	1.2	0.8	0.8			
Poisoning drugs 0.3 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.3 1.7 1.1 Poisoning chemicals 8.9 7.7 8.4 8.5 10.5 9.0 6.3 Firearm 17.9 10.8 12.2 12.8 13.2 16.0 22.0 Fire 0.0 0.3 0.6 1.0 0.8 1.0 0.7 Jumping 0.0 1.7 2.5 2.5 2.7 2.4 Drowning 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.5 Cutting 0.0 0.6 1.0 1.5 1.9 1.9 2.1 Blunt force 2.1 0.5 0.6 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 Other 0.0 2.8 2.6 2.6 3.0 2.7 3.6 Suffocation 100 52.7 37.2 34.0 38.4 45.5 38.1 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.5 0.0			South America								
Poisoning chemicals 8.9 7.7 8.4 8.5 10.5 9.0 6.3 Firearm 17.9 10.8 12.2 12.8 13.2 16.0 22.0 Fire 0.0 0.3 0.6 1.0 0.8 1.0 0.7 Jumping 0.0 1.7 2.5 2.5 2.7 2.4 Drowning 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.5 Cutting 0.0 0.6 1.0 1.5 1.9 1.9 2.1 Blunt force 2.1 0.5 0.6 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 Other 0.0 2.8 2.6 2.6 3.0 2.7 3.6 Non-Hispanic Caribbean Suffocation 100 52.7 37.2 34.0 38.4 45.5 38.1 Poisoning drugs 0.0 0.5 0.0 1.7 2.7 1.8 2.2 Poisoning che	Suffocation	68.7	73.6	69.9	66.8	63.9	63.2	59.6			
Firearm17.910.812.212.813.216.022.0Fire0.00.30.61.00.81.00.7Jumping0.01.72.52.52.52.72.4Drowning0.00.70.70.80.90.91.5Cutting0.00.61.01.51.91.92.1Blunt force2.10.50.60.90.80.80.7Other0.02.82.62.63.02.73.6Non-Hispanic CaribeanSuffocation10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.01.33.43.22.44.54.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.00.9Cutting0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.60.70.51.0	Poisoning drugs	0.3	1.3	1.5	2.5	2.3	1.7	1.1			
Fire0.00.30.61.00.81.00.7Jumping0.01.72.52.52.52.72.4Drowning0.00.70.70.80.90.91.5Cutting0.00.61.01.51.91.92.1Blunt force2.10.50.60.90.80.80.7Other0.02.82.62.63.02.73.6Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.044.557.657.053.442.147.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.51.5Jumping0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.00.00.40.00.90.9Cutting0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Poisoning chemicals	8.9	7.7	8.4	8.5	10.5	9.0	6.3			
Jumping0.01.72.52.52.52.72.4Drowning0.00.70.70.80.90.91.5Cutting0.00.61.01.51.91.92.1Blunt force2.10.50.60.90.80.80.7Other0.02.82.62.63.02.73.6 Non-Hispanic Caribbean Suffocation10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.044.557.657.053.442.147.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.90.9Cutting0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Firearm	17.9	10.8	12.2	12.8	13.2	16.0	22.0			
Drowning0.00.70.70.80.90.91.5Cutting0.00.61.01.51.91.92.1Blunt force2.10.50.60.90.80.80.7Other0.02.82.62.63.02.73.6Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.044.557.657.053.442.147.7Firearm0.01.33.43.22.44.54.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.90.9Cutting0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Fire	0.0	0.3	0.6	1.0	0.8	1.0	0.7			
Cutting0.00.61.01.51.91.92.1Blunt force2.10.50.60.90.80.80.7Other0.02.82.62.63.02.73.6Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.044.557.657.053.442.147.7Firearm0.01.33.43.22.44.54.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Jumping	0.0	1.7	2.5	2.5	2.5	2.7	2.4			
Blunt force2.10.50.60.90.80.80.7Other0.02.82.62.63.02.73.6Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.044.557.657.053.442.147.7Firearm0.01.33.43.22.44.54.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Drowning	0.0	0.7	0.7	0.8	0.9	0.9	1.5			
Other0.02.82.62.63.02.73.6Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.044.557.657.053.442.147.7Firearm0.01.33.43.22.44.54.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Cutting	0.0	0.6	1.0	1.5	1.9	1.9	2.1			
Non-Hispanic CaribbeanSuffocation10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.044.557.657.053.442.147.7Firearm0.01.33.43.22.44.54.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.90.9Cutting0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Blunt force	2.1	0.5	0.6	0.9	0.8	0.8	0.7			
Suffocation10052.737.234.038.445.538.1Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.044.557.657.053.442.147.7Firearm0.01.33.43.22.44.54.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.90.9Cutting0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Other	0.0	2.8	2.6	2.6	3.0	2.7	3.6			
Poisoning drugs0.00.50.01.72.71.82.2Poisoning chemicals0.044.557.657.053.442.147.7Firearm0.01.33.43.22.44.54.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.9Cutting0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5				Non-F	lispanic Car	ibbean					
Poisoning chemicals 0.0 44.5 57.6 57.0 53.4 42.1 47.7 Firearm 0.0 1.3 3.4 3.2 2.4 4.5 4.7 Fire 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.3 3.1 1.5 Jumping 0.0 0.5 1.1 1.4 1.3 1.0 2.0 Drowning 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.4 0.0 0.9 0.9 Cutting 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.7 0.5 1.0 Blunt force 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.6 0.5	Suffocation	100	52.7	37.2	34.0	38.4	45.5	38.1			
Firearm0.01.33.43.22.44.54.7Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.00.9Cutting0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.00.50.5	Poisoning drugs	0.0	0.5	0.0	1.7	2.7	1.8	2.2			
Fire0.00.00.00.40.33.11.5Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.00.9Cutting0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Poisoning chemicals	0.0	44.5	57.6	57.0	53.4	42.1	47.7			
Jumping0.00.51.11.41.31.02.0Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.00.9Cutting0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Firearm	0.0	1.3	3.4	3.2	2.4	4.5	4.7			
Drowning0.00.00.20.40.00.00.9Cutting0.00.00.00.60.70.51.0Blunt force0.00.00.00.00.30.60.5	Fire	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.4	0.3	3.1	1.5			
Cutting 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.7 0.5 1.0 Blunt force 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.6 0.5	Jumping	0.0	0.5	1.1	1.4	1.3	1.0	2.0			
Blunt force 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.6 0.5	Drowning	0.0	0.0	0.2	0.4	0.0	0.0	0.9			
	Cutting	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.6	0.7	0.5	1.0			
Other 0.0 0.4 0.6 1.4 0.4 0.8 1.1	Blunt force	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.3	0.6	0.5			
	Other	0.0	0.4	0.6	1.4	0.4	0.8	1.1			

Table A16. Method of suicide as percentage of total, by age group, in the Region of the Americas and its subregions, females, 2010–2014

Methods of suicide	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+				
		Region of the Americas									
Suffocation	71.9	58.1	51.1	39.3	27.7	25.2	29.0				
Poisoning drugs	6.7	5.7	9.4	20.8	31.1	30.1	23.7				
Poisoning chemicals	16.2	21.2	15.8	10.9	7.0	7.0	6.9				
Firearm	0.0	7.9	13.6	17.7	21.6	24.0	22.4				
Fire	0.2	0.6	0.9	1.7	2.0	2.3	3.1				
Jumping	0.0	2.7	3.8	4.4	4.5	4.4	5.6				
Drowning	3.8	0.6	1.1	1.4	1.9	2.7	3.6				
Cutting	0.2	0.2	0.5	1.0	1.7	2.0	2.4				
Blunt force	0.0	0.7	0.9	0.8	0.8	0.7	0.8				
Other	1.0	2.5	2.8	2.0	1.6	1.6	2.3				
		North America									
Suffocation	100	63.1	45.3	29.9	19.2	15.0	17.2				
Poisoning drugs	0.0	9.9	16.0	30.4	39.3	39.5	33.4				
Poisoning chemicals	0.0	0.7	1.9	3.0	3.8	3.8	4.5				
Firearm	0.0	18.2	26.5	27.5	28.2	31.7	32.7				
Fire	0.0	0.0	0.4	0.5	0.7	0.8	0.4				
Jumping	0.0	5.2	5.9	4.7	4.0	3.5	5.1				
Drowning	0.0	1.0	1.5	1.4	1.8	2.6	3.4				
Cutting	0.0	0.3	0.7	1.3	1.8	1.9	2.0				
Blunt force	0.0	1.4	1.4	0.9	0.7	0.6	0.8				
Other	0.0	0.3	0.6	0.5	0.6	0.6	0.5				
			Latin Ame	rica and the	Caribbean						
Suffocation	65.2	56.2	55.2	51.3	49.6	49.7	50.0				
Poisoning drugs	8.3	4.1	4.9	8.5	10.0	7.5	6.7				
Poisoning chemicals	20.1	28.9	25.4	21.2	15.5	14.6	11.2				
Firearm	0.0	4.0	4.7	5.2	4.6	5.5	4.3				
Fire	0.2	0.8	1.3	3.3	5.4	5.9	7.9				
Jumping	0.0	1.8	2.3	3.9	5.9	6.5	6.7				
Drowning	4.7	0.4	0.9	1.3	2.1	3.0	4.0				
Cutting	0.2	0.2	0.5	0.7	1.6	2.3	3.0				
Blunt force	0.0	0.4	0.6	0.6	1.1	0.9	0.6				
Other	1.3	3.3	4.3	4.0	4.2	4.0	5.6				

Table A16. Continued

Methods of suicide	5-9	10-19	20-24	25-44	45-59	60-69	70+			
	Central America, Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico									
Suffocation	52.3	58.5	58.2	54.7	50.2	48.8	47.1			
Poisoning drugs	0.0	4.0	4.2	6.4	10.3	10.4	13.1			
Poisoning chemicals	21.6	31.8	30.2	27.8	18.8	16.1	14.5			
Firearm	0.0	3.2	2.5	2.9	3.0	2.8	1.3			
Fire	0.9	0.4	0.9	3.2	9.7	12.4	15.6			
Jumping	0.0	0.7	0.7	1.6	3.6	3.9	3.8			
Drowning	19.8	0.1	0.4	0.4	1.2	0.8	1.9			
Cutting	0.0	0.0	0.5	0.7	1.3	2.7	1.9			
Blunt force	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.2	0.1	0.5	0.2			
Other	5.4	1.3	2.2	2.0	1.7	1.5	0.8			
		South America								
Suffocation	69.3	56.0	54.9	51.0	50.2	50.6	51.3			
Poisoning drugs	10.9	4.2	5.3	9.4	10.1	6.6	4.6			
Poisoning chemicals	19.6	25.8	21.4	17.3	13.3	13.0	9.2			
Firearm	0.0	4.6	5.9	6.2	5.1	6.6	5.5			
Fire	0.0	0.9	1.5	3.4	4.4	3.8	5.4			
Jumping	0.0	2.4	3.2	4.8	6.6	7.5	7.5			
Drowning	0.0	0.7	1.1	1.6	2.4	3.6	4.9			
Cutting	0.3	0.3	0.4	0.7	1.7	2.2	3.4			
Blunt force	0.0	0.6	0.9	0.8	1.3	1.0	0.8			
Other	0.0	4.6	5.4	4.8	4.9	5.0	7.4			
			Non-H	lispanic Car	ibbean					
Suffocation		26.1	25.2	23.6	22.0	29.8	38.6			
Poisoning drugs		1.5	3.3	4.0	5.5	3.8	2.3			
Poisoning chemicals		68.1	67.7	66.9	67.9	50.1	42.4			
Firearm		0.0	0.0	0.7	0.7	0.0	0.0			
Fire		1.8	2.5	1.2	0.7	1.7	0.0			
Jumping		1.3	0.0	1.7	0.7	4.2	12.1			
Drowning		0.0	1.3	1.1	0.7	8.7	0.0			
Cutting		0.0	0.0	0.4	0.0	0.0	2.3			
Blunt force		0.8	0.0	0.0	0.8	1.7	0.0			
Other		0.5	0.0	0.4	1.0	0.0	2.3			

Suicide is a serious public health problem surrounded by stigma, myths, and taboos. With an annual average of 81,746 suicide deaths in the period 2010–2014 and an age-adjusted suicide rate of 9.3 per 100,000 population (age-unadjusted rate of 9.6), suicide continues to be a public health problem of great relevance in the Region of the Americas.

Contrary to common belief, suicides are preventable with timely, evidence-based, and often low-cost interventions. It is estimated that for each suicide that occurs, there are more than 20 attempts. Suicide can occur at any age and it is the third highest cause of death among young people between the ages of 20 and 24 in the Region of the Americas.

This report corresponds to the five-year period between 2010 and 2014. It provides a general description of suicide mortality in the Americas, by subregions and countries. It analyzes the distribution of suicide according to age, sex, and methods used, along with the changes in suicide from 2010 to 2014. This report is limited to the study of mortality as, in most countries, no record of self-harm exists, due to lack of appropriate surveillance systems.

In the period 2010–2014, 55.8% of suicide deaths in the Region occurred in North America. The age-adjusted suicide rate was also highest in North America (12.8 per 100,000 population), which along with the non-Hispanic Caribbean (9.8) was higher than the regional rate, while the other two subregions had rates lower than the regional rate (6.7 in Central America, the Hispanic Caribbean, and Mexico; 6.9 in South America).

In Latin America and the Caribbean, it is essential that national suicide prevention programs be developed, especially in those countries with higher suicide rates. This report identifies 12 countries in the Region of the Americas with high suicide rates compared with the regional average and where two-thirds of the suicide deaths are concentrated.

Strengthening information systems and surveillance of suicidal behavior is required. Improving mortality registries alone is not enough. It is also necessary to develop registries of suicidal behavior and implement follow-up mechanisms in high-risk cases.

This report identifies the most frequent suicide methods. The availability of firearms is an important risk factor, particularly in North America. Access to pesticides in rural areas is another risk factor, especially in the non-Hispanic Caribbean. Alcohol and drug abuse need to be monitored for early identification and attention. Each method of suicide may require specific preventive interventions.

Countries should revise their existing legal framework regarding the availability of services and resources to prevent and address the problem of suicidal behavior.



www.paho.org

